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September 22, 2005

Honorable Mayor and

Members of City Council
CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
Sanibe], Flonda

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the C1ty of Sam'bel,
Florida, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 is respectfully
submitted, Chapter 218.39, Florida Statutes and the City Charter require
that a complete set of financial statements be published within one year
of the fiscal year end and be presented in conformance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United State of America (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States - of America by licensed independent certified public

- accountants,

This report  consists of management’s representations concemning the
finances of the City.  Consequently, management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the Clty has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to

‘protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile

sufficient, reliable information for the preparation of the City’s financial

~ statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal

controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City’s comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free
from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best
of our knowledge and belief, this ﬁnanclal report is complete and reliable

‘m all materlal respects

The City of Sanibel’s ﬁnan01a1 statements have been audlted by Schultz
Chaipel, CPA’s., LLP, a licensed certified public accounting firm. The
independent audit was performed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2004 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examuning, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial = statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. - The independent
auditor concluded based upon the andit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City’s financial statements
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 are faxrly presented n
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as
the first component of the financial section of this report.-



SUMMARY OF PRESENTATION
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is preéented in four sections:

INTRODUCTORY SECTION — includes the table of contents, this letter of transmittal,
which is designed to complement the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
- and should be read in conjunction with it, the City’s organizational chart and the list of
City officials. . ‘

FINANCIAL SECTION - includes the auditors’ opinion, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A), Basic Financial Statements, Required Supplemental Information, and
Combining Financial Statements and Schedules. GAAP require that management
provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

STATISTICAL SECTION -- includes selected financial and general information
presented on a multi-year comparative basis.  This information is designed to reflect
social and economic data, financial trends and the fiscal capacity of the City.

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION - is required in order for the City to be in conformity with
the provisions of the Single Audit Act and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and
in conformity with the Florida Single Audit Act (Section 215.97, Florida Statutes) and
Chapter 27D-1, Rules of the Executive Office of the Governor, Florida Administrative
Code. Included in this section is the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the
auditors’ reports on internal control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

THE CITY

The City of Sanibel incorporated on November 5, 1974, The City of Sanibel is located
on Sanibel Island, a barrier island in the Gulf of Mexico off the coast of southwest
Florida in Lee County. The City is connected to the mainland by a three-mile causeway
owned and operated by Lee County, Florida. The City operates under the council-
manager form of government. The policy-making and legislative authority is vested in
governing council consisting of five (5) non-partisan members elected at-large in
staggered four (4) year terms. One council member is selected anmually from among the
five council members to serve as the Mayor.

The City Council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances and
resolutions, adopting the annual budget, appointing committees and biring the City’s
Manager and Attorney. The City Manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the City Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City and
for appointing the heads of the various departments. The City provides a comprehensive
range of municipal services including general government, public safety (police
protection, emergency management and building inspection, however, fire services are
provided by an independent taxing district), natural resource management, including an



environmentally sensitive land acquisition and restoration program, sewer utility services
(water service is provided to City residents by a water cooperative), transportation,
including road, bridge and multi-use path construction and maintenance, a below market
rate housing program and culture/recreation activities.

REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all funds and the component unit of the City. The City as the
primary government includes Community Housing and Resources, Inc. (CHR) as a
component unit using the discrete method of presentation determined pursuant to
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 14 criteria. CHR is under
contract with the City to administer the City’s Below Market Rate Housing program.
Although the Board of CHR is not selected by the City Council, CHR is fiscally
dependent upon the City in that there is a financial burden to the City and the nature and
significance of the relationship betwéen the City and CHR is such that excluding CHR
from the City’s financial statements would be misleading and incomplete.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City of Sanibel, located in Lee County, isa highly desﬁéﬁle tourist de_stination. Lee
County is also one of the fastest growing counties in Florida in both absolute and
percentage population growth and in total bousing starts.

The City’s population of permanent residents and registered f’roters continues to grow
with the permanent resident population more than doubling and the mumber of registered
voters more than tripling since incorporation 30 years ago.

YEAR RESIDENTS VOTERS
1974 2,875 - 1,306
1984 4,375 3,029
1994 5.672 4,520
2004 6,335 4,906

The City has a tremendous impact on the area economy because Sanibel Island
contributes significantly to the attraction of tourism to the southwest Florida area.
Sanibel has miles of beautiful beaches, which are world-renowned for shelling. Seventy-
seven percent (77%) of the island is either within a federal wildlife preserve or otherwise
classified as conservation lands. The protection of the environment is a paramount
priority of the City and its residents.

The City recognizes the economic contribution and infrastructure impact of seasonal
residents and tourists. Also recognized is the economic and infrastructure impact of the
island’s geographic location and susceptibility to hurricanes. On August 13, 2004,
Hurricane Charley hit Sanibel Island and for over one (1) week access to the island was
restricted to- emergency and essential personnel. - For over two (2) weeks only residents
and persons receiving a city-issued hurricane pass were allowed on the island due.to

[}



public safety concems including no electricity and over 253,000 cubic yards of debris
block]ng roadways and other public accesses.

Debris removal and structural safety inspections proceeded rapidly and by September 2,
2004 the island was reopened to the general public. There has been a large economic
impact to island businesses as well as gulf-front resorts, homes and condominiums. This
impact can easily be noted by the decrease in causeway traffic shown in the statistics
below.

Calendar Causeway Percent Increase
Year Traffic (Decrease)
1975 - 793,373 -N/A
1980 : 1,553,281 95.78%

- 1985 2,290,961 47.49%
1990 3,020,181 31.83%
1995 3,199,822 - 5.95%
2000 3,433,769 7.31%
2004 3,112,301 -9.36%

In order to address the financial impact of the City’s expense incurred for debris removal,
emergency protective services and other damage repair costs, the City borrowed $10
million from the Florida Local Government Commercial Paper program. The four-year,
variable rate debt will be repaid from federal and state reimbursements as they are
received pursuant to the guidelines of Federal Emergency Management Administration
(FEMA).

Even though there was damage to resorts, homes and businesses, the tax base of the
island .upon which the City levies taxes, has remained strong. Between tax years 2002
and 2003, existing property values rose 7.76% and new construction added an additional
$61,142,739 for a total property value of $3,999,633,810. This progressive growth of the
tax base has allowed the City to maintain a millage rate far below the State-regulated ten
(10) mlll cap:

TAXABLE MILLAGE

TAX YEAR (*) VALUATION RATE
1999 $ 2,393,659,200 1.9181
2000 2,682,897,770 1.7291
2001 3,226,396,010 1.7291
2002 - 3,655,765,340 1.7291
2003 3,999,633,810 1.7291

(*) The tax year represents a calendar year, upon which the levy of ad valorem taxes
- = -iei-u -=. - . -ig made in arrears and is-recorded as revenue in the subsequent fiscal year. . . . . . . .

The tax base for tax year 2004 (upon which the fiscal year 2004-05 tax revenue is
determined) had already been established at the time Hurricane Charley impacted
Sanibel; however the Lee County Property Appraiser has adjusted Sanibel taxable
assessed property values for tax year 2005 by a reduction of 0.47%.



Because of the economic impact of Hurricane Charley on island business, City Council
will be developing a Small Business Initiative in-the upcoming fiscal year. Another
major initiative for Sanibel is redevelopment. Redevelopment of currently developed
property places tremendous pressure on Council from requests for larger and faller
buildings which compromise the land development code known as the Sanibel Plan.
Conducting a Redevelopment Study will also be vmdertaken in the upcoming fiscal year.

Since the cost of services to the community continue to grow and property taxes
comprised approximately 39.5% of fiscal year 2004 revemues from governmental
activities, the City continues to explore new methods for financing operational services
and infrastructure maintenance. Such methods include instituting new fees and/or
increasing existing fees and charges to insure economic recovery of costs associated with
prowdmg certain governmental services such as building and development permit
issuance. -

SANIBEL VISION STATEMENT

The major and future initiatives described below were undertaken to further the adopted
City Vision Statement, as follows:

“Sanibel is and shall remain a Barrier Island Sanctuary, one in which a diverse
population lives in harmony with the Island’s wildlife and natural habitats.”

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Phase 3A expansion project of the Sanibel Sewer System, estimated at $6.2 million was
begun during fiscal year 2003 and was scheduled for. completion in August 2004,
However, due to the impact of Hurricane Charley and some difficulty in securing
easements, the project, which will add 523 eqmvalent residential connections (ERC’s) to
the system, becomes available for connection in February 2005.

FUTURE INITIATIVES

The wastewater master plan includes a 4-phase plan to substantially sewer the entire
island to eliminate leaching septic tanks from contamivating the ground water. Phase 4,
the final expansion phase, is under design and if economically feasible will be completed
by December 2006.

. Design plans bave been developed by an archltect to build a new recreatlon ﬁtc]hty The
current recreation facility, built in 1981 from community donations, includes an outdoor
swimming pool, an un-air-conditioned gymmasium, weight room and multi-purpose
building. The estimated project cost for the new facility is $14 million. During the fall
of 2005, City Council will consider whether or not to move forward with the project by
. placing a referendum on the March 2006 ballot for general obligation bond financing.



City Council has also given staff direction to pursue the following projects and has
included funding in the fiscal year 2005 budget:

e Construction of a culvert between Dinkins and Clam Bayous to improve water
quality ($600,000)
Construction of a Pavilion at the Sanibel School site ($200,000)
Continuation of the Exotic Plant Eradication ($240,000)
City Hall air conditioning duct work replacement ($150,000)
Completion of Phase 2 of the Ball field relocation ($360,000) funded by the sale
of fill materials to the School district.

In addition to the major and future mitiatives described above, the City continues to
provide quality services to the Sanibel community. However, because of the impact of
Hurricane Charley, the operating property tax rate which had remained at the same level
for three consecutive years was increased to 2.5000 mills for fiscal year 2004-05 in order
to reimburse the $1 million disaster reserve and address unreimburseable recovery costs.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
- BUDGETARY CONTROL

Budgetary control is established by Section 3.12 of the City Charter, which requires the
adoption of an annual budget and Section 3.13, which provides for supplemental
amendments to increase, decrease or transfer funds within the annual budget framework.

The Finance Director, on behalf of the City Manager, is responsible for the preparation of
the City’s budget. The annual budget is adopted after an extensive review and evaluation
of budget proposals from the various City departments to determine the funding level
necessary to provide municipal services. Pursuant to the State of Florida “Truth In
Millage™ legislation, after consideration by Council and input by the citizenry at two
public hearings during September of each year, Couuncil adopts the final millage rate and
the annual budget.

Budgetary control throughout the fiscal year is maintained through monitoring
encumbrances of estimated purchase amounts. Encumbrances for goods or services not
received by fiscal year-end lapse and must be re-budgeted in the following year.

CASH MANAGEMENT
The City has an investment policy, which places a priority on the safety of principal and

liquidity. The City’s cash management program incorporates the principles of keeping
all investments free from risk, maintaming adequate liquidity and flexibility to meet both .

 scheduled and unscheduled obligations and maximizing return. - Authorized investments -

include the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (LGSFTF), negotiable direct
obligations of, or obligations the principal and interest of which are unconditionally
guaranteed by, the United State Government and their agencies, non-negotiable interest-
bearing time certificate of deposit, repurchase agreements, and savings in “Qualified
Public Depositories” as defined in Florida Security for Public Deposits Act (Florida

vi



Statutes Chapter 280). Additionally, the Pension Trust Funds are authorized to invest in
corporate bonds and equity securities.

The City maintains two (2) pooled cash accounts with the State of Florida LGSFTF. This
investment vehicle allows flexibility and earns favorable interest rates for the City’s
investments. There was $10,683,435 and $5,529,676 respectively deposited in the
General and Sewer System LGSFTF accounts at September 30, 2004, There were six
investments with US Government Agency securities totaling $2,372,418. The two
pension trusts combined had $12,552,401 of investments as of September 30, 2004.

DEBT COVERAGE

The City’s Business-type activities are summarized in the MD&A and the Government-
wide financial statements as a combined single column. The Sanibel Sewer System has
significant outstanding debt therefore to complement the available information in the
Notes to the Financial Statements, the following schedule is presented.

2003 Sewer State Revolving

Refunding Bonds Loans TOTAL
Operating Revenues _ b 2,568,759 % 499505 $ 3,068,264
Operating Expenses (excluding Depreciation and '
Indirect Costs) (2,281,204) - (2,281,204)
Net Operatinig Revenues ' 287.555 499,505 787,060
Ad Valorem Taxes-Voted Debt Service Levy - 1,263,404 1,263,404
Investment Income 126,047 260,110 386,157
Other miscellaneous revenue 3,807 - 3,807
Net Revenues available for Debt Service (excluding
Connection Fees)} 417,409 2,023,019 2,440,428
Comnection Fees 200,578 - 200,578
Net Revenue and Connection Fees Available for
Debt Service 617,987 2,023,019 2,641,006
Arnnual Debt Service Requirement : $ 417,409 $ 3,067,095 % 3,484,504
Debt Service Coverage from Net Revenues 100% N/A: 70%
{A) Coverage Requirement from Net Revenues 110% N/A N/A
Debt Sexvice Coverage from Net Revenues &
Connection Fees 148% 66% 76%
(B) Coverage Requirement from Net Revenues &
Comnection Fees (*) 125% 115% N/A

(*) With respect to (B), Net Revenues, excluding Connection Fees must be
adequate to pay at least 100% of the.current Debt Service Requirement on the
2003 Sewer Refunding Bonds

There is $10,369,941 of reserved assets in the Sanibel Sewer System Fund for
Assessments Receivable, pledged to the State Revolving Loans above. The annual
collection of receivables is used in addition to Operating Revenue and Ad Valorem Tax-
Voted Debt Service Levy to make principal and interest payments on these loans.

Pursuant to the results of the annual financial feasibility study and the above factors, City
Council adopted a rate increase ordinance prior to September 30, 2004, which increases
sewer user fees by 15% effective October 1, 2004.

Vil



RISK MANAGEMENT

The City continues its risk management program for workers’ compensation, property,
general and other liability insurance coverages. The City participates in a pre-
employment drug screening program for certain employees and employs an active safety
committee, not only to take advantage of the premium discounts offered for having these
programs, but to evaluate and reduce risk exposures. Third-party coverage through the
Florida League of Cities Self-Insurers Fund (The League) is maintained for workers’
compensation, property, general and other lability claims. The League has also been.
involved in the City’s proactive approach to risk management.

PENSION BENEFITS

The City sponsors two single-employer defined benefit pension plans, one for its general
employees and the other for police officers. The plan benefits remained constant in 2004
-for both the General Employees and Municipal Police Officers defined benefit pension
plans. A seven (7) member Board of Trustees administers the General Employees’
Pension Plan. A separate seven (7) member Board of Trustees administers the Police
Officers” Pension Plan. Each year, an independent actuary is engaged by the respective
Boards of Trustees to calculate the annual required contribution amount which the City
must make to ensure that the plans will be able to fully meet their obligations to retired
employees on a timely basis. As a matter of policy, the City fully funds each year’s
annual required contribution to the pension plans as determined by the actuary. The City
offers no other post-employment benefits, ‘

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The City of Sanibel has been awarded the Certificate of Excellence in Financial
Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for its |
comprehensive annual financial reports each year since fiscal year 1986. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City publishes easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial reports. These reports satisfy both generally
accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. It is our belief that this
fiscal year 2004 report continues to meet program standards and it will be submitted to
the GFOA for their review.

A comprehensive financial report of this nature could not have been prepared without the
dedicated efforts of the Finance staff. We would like to express our sincere appreciation
to this staff for their noteworthy accomplishments in the completion of this endeavor.

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank you for achieving and maintaining
this high degree of fiscal responsibility.

Judith/ A, Zitfiomra, City Manager Renee M. Lynch, Financg/Director
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The Government Finance- Officers Association of the United
States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the CITY
OF SANIBEL for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. )

In order to be awarded -a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must-publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose
contents conform-to program standards. Such reports must
satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the
Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are
submitting it to GFOA. , - ' .
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*Regulated by the State of Florida
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sanibel, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sanibel,
Florida (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2004, which, together with the
aggregate discretely presented component unit, collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Community Housing and Resources, Inc., a
component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for Community Housing and Resources, Inc., is based solely on the report of the other
auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sanibel, Florida, as of September
30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof
and the budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

950 Encore Way, Suite 102 _ 12660 World Plaza Lane
Naples, FL. 34110 Fort Myers, FL 33907
(239) 417-4007 ! (239) 939-5333

Www.swﬂcpa.com

Fax: (239) 254-8249 Fax: (239) 939-4682



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 7, 2005,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on pages 3 through 12 and schedules of funding
progress and schedules of contributions from employer and other contributing entities on pages 62
through 63, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, the combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and budget and actual schedules, and the statistical
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor financial
statements, budget to actual schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

S'C/A/ég‘, UA/WA r’@.’ v

Schultz, Chaipel & Co., L.L.P.
Tuly 7, 2005
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Discussion and analysis of the City of Sanibel's financial statements is intended to
provide a narrative mtroduction to the basic financial statements and an analytical
overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

0 The assets of the City of Sanibel exceeded its hab1ht1es at September«30 2004
by $64,119,532 (net assets). Of this amount, $7,577,186 is unrestricted net
assets in the Governmental Activities, which may be used to meet the City's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The npegative $4,020,796 of
unrestricted net assets in the Business-type activities reflects the Sanibel
Sewer System’s significant investment in capital assets, financed by debt for
which most of the system’s assets must be restricted per debt covenants.

o The City's total net assets increased by $927,108 for fiscal year 2004,

0 As of September 30, 2004, the City of Sanibel's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $18,818,726 and approximately 97% of
this amount is unreserved. This is an increase of $4,586, 944 over the
September 30, 2003 ending fund balances.

0 The City of Sanibel's total debt increased by $13 996, 564 during ﬁscal year
2004, This increase is discussed further in the debt administration section of
this letter.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 provides the authoritative
guidance on the governmental financial reportir.lg model. :

The Statement of Net Assets (page 14) and the Statement of Activities (page 15)
provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term
view of the City's finances. The statements separate governmental from business-type
activities but-both are measured and reported using the economic resource measurement
focus and the full accrual basis of accounting.

The Fund Financial Statements, which report by fund type, begin on page 16. The
governmental funds measure and report activities using the current fmancial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Therefore you will find
the reconciliation on pages 17 and 19 that converts this data to an economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting for use in the entity-wide
financial statements. The Fund Financial Statements present information in more detail
than i the Entity-wide financial statements. - Except for the General Fund and  the
Hurricane Charley 8/13/2004 Fund, all other funds of the City are combined in an "other
govemmentalﬁm " column.



THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

Government-wide financial statements are intended to allow the reader to assess a
government's operational accountability. ~Operational accountability is defined as the
extent t6 which the government has met its operating objectives efficiently and
effectively, using all resources available for that purpose, and whether it can continue to
meet its objectives for the foreseeable future. The statements separate governmental
from business-type activities. For purposes of these statements, both types are measured
and reported using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. - o

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City is improving or deteriorating. ‘

The statement of activities presents information showing how tbe: City's net assets
changed during fiscal year 2004. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some iterns that - will only result in cash flows in firture fiscal
periods, such as uncollected taxes and earned but not used vacation leave.

Both of these financial statements distinguish the primary types of functions of the City,
defined as follows:

o Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here,
including police, public works, recreation, management of natural resources,
building inspection, planning, code enforcement and general administration.
Major revenues supporting these activities are ad valorem taxes, sales and gas
taxes, franchise and communications services taxes and intergovernmental
" revenues. Lesser revenues come from building permits, occupational licenses,
fees, grants and investments. _
0 Business-type activities - The City's Sewer System and Beach Parking
services are reported here. The services are supported primarily from user
fees. Financing of major capital assets is usually necessary. Debt service is
supported by user fees, special assessments and, for the Sewer System debt,

ad valorem taxes from a voter approved tax levy.



Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain financial control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal reqmrements Al of the funds of the City can be
divided into three categories: . '

1) Governmental funds - account for most of the City's tax-supported
activities. Examples are the General Fund and the Capital Project Funds.
These funds focus on how money flows into and out of the funds, and the
balances left at year-end. The accounting method used is called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that
can readily be converted to-cash, usua]ly within a 60-day period. The two
criteria. used are that the revenue is measurable and available. Examples
of differences from economic focus are that debt proceeds and grants are
considered current revenue, and purchases of capital assets are considered
expendltures whereas depreciation is not considered an expenditure since
there is o outlay of cash. In the City's highly regulatory environment,
fund accounting serves a very important purpose, in that funds received

- for specifi¢ purposes are identified as such and can readily be andited.
2} Propriectary funds - are used to account for the business-type, or
enterprise activities of the govermment. The City's two enterprise funds
are the -Sanibel Sewer System and the Beach Parking Fund. - All
proprietary funds use full accrual basis accounting and the economic
measurement focus. Fees or charges are the primary revenue source for
‘proprietary funds.- However, the Sanibel Sewer System enterprise fund
receives-tax revenue from a voter-approved tax levy to pay debt service

: - related to the capital expansion projects. _
- 3) . Fiduciary funds - are used to account for resources held for the beneﬁt of
-parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the City's own programs. - The
accountmg used for fiduciary funds is similar to propnetary funds.

Notes to the Fmancml Statements

The notes prowde add.ltlonal information that is essentxal to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes can be
found begmnmg on page 30. - ,

Required Supplementary Informatlon

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) call for certain unaudited information
to accompany the audited basic financial statement and accompanying footnotes. This
information is called required supplementary information (RSI) and includes this
analysis, called the MD & A, budgetary comparisons, and trend data on pension funding.



THE CITY AS A WHOLE

The City's combined net assets as of September 30, 2004 were $64,119,532. The City's
combined revenues, including contributions, grants, charges for services and taxes, were
$27,067,934. Total expenses city-wide were $26,140,826. The increase to city-wide net
assets was $927,108. The following Table 1 reflects a condensed Statement of Net
Assets for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2004.

Table 1
Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activiies | Totel Primary Government

2004 | 2003 2004 | 2003 2004 | 2003

Curent and other assets - $27,946,025 $16,066213 $17,021,756 $19,526,267 $44,967,781 $35,592,480
Capital assets, net of depreoiation 35409913 31,420,527 55700475 51,295,988 91,110,388  82.716,515
Total assets : 63355938 47,486,740 72,722231 70,822,255 136,078,169 118,308,995
Long-term liabilities 19401,757 8,707,520 47,044,396 43,654,188 66446,153 52,361,708
Other Liabilities 4475749 1,572,481 _ 1,036,735 _ 1,182,382 5512484 2,754,863
Tatal labilities 23,877,506 10,280,001 48,081,131 44,836,570 71,958,637 55,116,571
Net assets: .
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 28,706,225 24424842 . 8,397,260 . 7,309,318 ' 37,103,485 31,734,160
Restricted } 3,195,021 3,141,031 20,264,636 20,418,017 23459,657 23,555,048
Unrestricted ' 7577186 9,640,866 (4,020,796) (1,741,650) 3,556,390 7,899,216
Total net assets $39,478.432 $37,206,739 $24,641,100 $25,985,685 $64,119,532 863,192,424

Capital assets, such as land, buildings, roads, bridges, machinery and equipment, less the
outstanding debt used to acquire those assets are the largest portion (62%) of the City's
net assets. The City uses these assets to provide services to citizens consequently these
assets are not available for future spending. It is also important to recognize that other
resources will be required to repay the outstanding debt on capital assets. Restricted net
assets, representing 39% of total net assets, are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. Unrestricted net assets of $3,556,390 are 5.55% of total net assets. In
the governmental activities, $7,577,186 or 19% of net assets are unrestricted and used to
meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. The negative amount of
unrestricted net assets; $4,020,796 in the business-type activities is due to the sewer
system’s significant investment in capital assets, financed by debt for which most of the
system’s assets must be restricted per debt covenants. Other contributing factors to the
negative unrestricted net assets in the Business-Type Activities is the delay m new
customer hook-ups to the Sanibel Sewer system caused by the impact of Hurricane
Charley on the completion of the expansion projects to provide service to new customers.

In recognition of these impacts and based on the results of the anoual financial feasibility
study of the sewer system, City Council adopted a rate increase ordinance prior to
September 30, 2004 to increase sewer rates by 15% effective October 1, 2004.



Table 2 is the condensed Statement of Activities for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2004.

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
Govemnmental Activities Business-Type Activities | Total Primary Government
2004 ] 2003, 2004 | 2003 2004 | 2003
Revenues:
Program revenues : ‘
Charges for services . $ 2,010,174 3 2,873,724 § 4,045,780 $ 3,539,123 § 6,055,954 § 6,412,847
Operating grants and contributions 6,908,629 2,439,931 158,257 149,960 7,066,885 2,589,891
Capital grants and contributions 1,038,591 2,468,263 200,578 4,290,064 1,239,169 6758327
General revenues . . . ’
Property taxes 6,901,250 65,468,467 1,263,404 1,344,129 8,164,654  7.812,596
Other taxes 2,485,318 2,289,904 ' - - 2,485,318 2,289,904
Infergovernmental revenues 1,209,139 1,354,821 - - 1,209,139 1,354.821
Other 431,485 345,803 415,329 351,745 846,814 697,548
Total revenues 20,984,586 18,240,913 6,083,348 9,675,021 27,067,934 27,515,934
Expenses (including indirect expenses):
General government 1,444,933 2,328,532 - - 1,444,633 2,328,532
Public safety 4,821,904 3,617,809 - - 4,321,904 3,617,309
Physical eﬂwmnment 3,601,032 358,821 - - 3,601,032 358,321
Sewer - : - 6,232,816 4,194,016 6,232,816 4,194,016
Public works 2,600,998 996,553 - - 2,600,998 996,553
Beach parking - o= 1,195,117 908,928 1,195,117 908,928
Economic development 805,318 295,924 - - 805,318 295,924
Human services . - 1,083 - - - 1,083
Culture/recreation 5,028,692 4,044 387 - - 5,028,692 4,044,387
Interest on long-term debt 410,016 373,017 - - 410,016 373,017
Tatal expenses 18,712,893 12,016,126 7,427,933 5,102,944 26,140,826 17,119,070
Increase (decrease) in net assets 2,271,693 6,224,787 (1,344,585) 4,572,077 927,108 - 10,796,864
Net assets-beginning . 37,206,739. 30,981,952 25,985,685 21,413,608 63,192,424, 52395560
Net assets-ending $39,478,432 $37,206,73% 524,641,100 $25,985,685 $64,119,532 . $63,192,424

Total net assets-increased by $927,108. While net assets in the governmental activities
increased by $2,271,693, net assets in the busmess-type activities decreased by
$1,344,585. The primary factor in the decrease in met assets in the business-type
activities was due to Hurricane Charley The delay in sewer expansion projects caused
by the storm postponed the service delivery to new customers and resulted on lower
revenues than expected. Beach parks were also closed after the storm, which resulted in
lower parkmg Tevenues.

Governmental Activities

Table 3 presents the total cost of services for each of the City’s five largest programs as
well as each program's net cost, that is, total cost less program revenues (i.e. excluding
taxes), generated by the activities. The net cost represents the portion of each program
that is supported by various General Revenues, including taxes.



The cost of all governmental activities this fiscal year was $19.3 million. As shown in
the Statement of Activities (see page 15), the net cost ultimately paid through taxes was
$8.76 million. The remaining $9.9 million was provided by:

e $2.0 million in charges for services, of which $648,644 was from various fees for
general government services, the most significant of which were occupational
license fees of $269,360 and development-type fees of $252,938. Building-type
permits of $470,098 and traffic/parking violations of $152,902 were the
significant charges for services in the public safety activity.

o $6.9 million was from operating grants, of which $2.368 million was from Lee
County for the operation of the Sanibel Public Library and $4.1 million due from
the Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) for public
assistance in the recovery from Hurricane Charley.

e $1.038 million in capital grants and.contributions, the most significant of which
were a Community Development Block Grant of $309,943; and Road Impact Fees
of $204,823 and Commumnity Park Impact Fees of $233,162.

Table 3 _
Governmental Activities

Total Cost Of Services Net Cost (Earnings) Of Services

2004 [ 2003 2004 [ 2003
Public safety $ 4,163,563 $§ 3,039,551 $ 3,319,806 $§ 3,015,949
Physical environment 3,568,109 329,425 {140,396) (2,543,435)
Public works 2,230,481 2,043,246 1,857,356 332,641
Economic development 794,495 . 285,701 775,032 226,666
Culture/Recreation ' 4,723,022 3,794,700 1,923,198 1,717,739
All Others 3,849,441 3,115,022 1,020,503 1,484,648

Totals $ 19,329,111 § 12,607,645 § 8,755,499 5§ 4,234,208

Business-type Activities

Revenues of the City's business-type activities as shown on Table 2, above, totaled
$6,083,348. Expenses totaled $7,427,933, which shows a decrease in net assets of
$1,344,585. Delays in construction of the phase 2C and 3A expansion projects due to
damage to the causeway in the prior year as well as island-wide damage caused by
Hurricane Charley, contributed to a slower than projected connection of new customers
to the sewer system. This resulted in lower revenues than anticipated. Prior to
September 30, 2004, City Council passed an ordinance increasing Sewer service charges
by 15% beginning October 1, 2004 to address this concern.

Beach Parking rates remained at $2.00 per hour. Hurricane Charley necessitated the
closing of certain parks after the storm event, however, there was not a loss of revenue
during fiscal year 2004 compared to fiscal year 2003. In the subsequent fiscal year, in
anticipating the loss of revenue, the City reduced the operating expenses of the beach
parking facilities by re-assigning beach parking employees to post-storm recovery duties.



THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accountmg to ensure and demonstrate compllance
with finance-related legal reqlmements

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are comprised of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt
service finds and capital projects funds. Governmental finds use the current financial
resources measurement focus that provides information on the near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. At the end
of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $9,519,156, -
while total fund balance reached $9,533,952. The fund balance of the Clty s general fund-
increased $1,487,111 during the current fiscal year. Key factors in this increase are as
follows:

e Property tax revenue mcreased by $570,384 (9.35%) over prior year tax revenue
due to an increase in the assessed property value and mew construction thus
increasing the ad valorem tax revenue from the same operating Millage levy.

e Other tax revenue increased by $173,964 (9. 6%), intergovernmental revenue
increased by $280,080 (7.6%) and charges for services rose by $85,808 (6.75%)
due to State calculation factors applied to favorable economic conditions within
Lee County.

The Hurricane Charley 8/13/04 Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the City’s
other major governmental fund. This fund was established and budgeted by Council
Resolution after the August 2004 storm event. The City borrowed $10 million from the
Florida Local Government Commercial Paper Pool to address the immediate financial
response to the disaster. There is further discussion of this debt and the City’s fesponse

to Hurricane Charley both below and in the Notes to the Financial Statements. '

All other governmental funds are accounted for in the column entitled Other
Governmental Funds. Included in Other Governmental Funds are Special Revenue,
Debt Service and Capltal Project Funds. There were no significant changes in fund
balances or net assets in any of the Special Revenue Funds except the Below Market Rate
Housing Fund which realized a reduction in fund balance of $2.0 million from the land
for debt swap described in Note 2 (b) of the Notes to the Financial Statements. There
was no significant changes in find balance or net assets in either the Debt Service or
Capital Project funds.



Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds are comprised of enterprise finds. An enterprise fimd is
used to account for activities for which a fee is charged to external users for goods and
services. These funds provide the same type of information, but in more detail than that
found in the government-wide financial statements. .

Budgetary Highlights-Governmental Activities

General Fund

The difference between the General Fund's original and final amended budget equaled an
increase of $252,952 in total revenues, due to grant awards being received during the
year. Otber budget amendments, all of which are adopted by Council Resolution, were
approved throughout the year, the most significant of which was in the amount of
$1,000,000 from fund balance, which had been reserved for disasters in previous years.
This amount was used for the initial response to Hurricane Charley. Budget to actual
results from revenues were favorable with $848,465 more being received than was
budgeted. Of this amount $582,545 was from intergovernmental revenue. The budget to
actual variance for expenditures was also favorable in the amount of $1,694,724. A more
detailed analysis- of this discussion can be found in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and changes in Fund Balances—Budget and Actual found on Page 20.

Hurricane Charley 8/13/04 Special Revenue Fund

As previously discussed, the Hurricane Charley Fund was established by budget
amendment to account for the proceeds of the $10 million debt proceeds borrowed from
the Florida Local Government Commercial Paper Pool used to pay for recovery costs.
Any budgeted but unspent finds will be re-appropriated in the subsequent fiscal year to
complete the recovery efforts.

Other Governmental Funds

There were no significant budget to actual variances in the Other Govemmental Funds.
Since these funds are accoumted for. separately for specific purposes, any favorable
variances will be re—appropnated in the subsequent fiscal year to continue or complete the
purpose for which the funds were originally budgeted. :

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
The City's capital assets as of September 30, 2004 reﬂect an investment of $91,110,388,
net of accumulated depreciation.

In compliance with GASB No. 34, the City has separated out an infrastructure asset
category, which was formerly included in Improvements other than buildings. The City's
infrastructure, such as roads, multi-use paths, bridges, piers and sewer pipe, is recorded at
actual or best estimate historical cost.

10



Table 4 provides a comparative summary of net capital assets by category for both
governmental and business-type activities.

_Table 4
Capital Assets at Year End
(net of depreciatioh)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities | Totals
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Land $23,002,715  $20,922,253 $1,350,051 $1,347,851  $26,352,766. $22,270,104
Buildings 2,155,272 2,129,695 199,147 - 234,313 2,354,419 2,364,008
Improvements other than buildings 115,910 136,244 257,403 359,970 373,3 13 496,214
Vehicles and equipment 1,555,429 1,551,992 1,062,357 696,462 2,617,786 2,248,454
Infrastructurs 5,979,811 6,297,113 47,256,193 24,757,756 53,276,004 31,054,869
Construction work in progress 600,776 383,230 5,535,324 23,899,636 6,136,100 24,282,866
Total Capital Assets $35,400.913  $31.420,527 $55,700,475 $51,295988 $91,110,388  $82,716,515

Significant changes in assets this fiscal year include:

Acquisition of land along Periwinkle Way .to augment adjacent park lands,

$338,895.

Land for debt swap with the City’s component unit wherein the C1ty cancelled its
note receivable from the component unit in the amount of $2,474,204 in exchange
for land having approximately the same appraised value.

Construction work in progress on the Phase 3A sewer expansion project, $5.5
million

Sewer Expansion Phase 2C in the amount of $8,487,230 was put into service in
June 2004

Phase 2 Plant Expansion was put into service November 2003 in the amount of
$16,141,827 :

Long-term Debt
As of September 30, 2004, the City had $65,969,176 in bonds, notes and leases. Table 5

below provides a comparative summary of the City's outstanding debt:

Table 5
Outstanding Debt
Govemmental Activitiss Business-type Activitics " Totals
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Bonds:

General Obligation Bonds § 3,695,000 % 3,775,000 § - 8 - § 3695000 $ 3,775,000

Revenue Bonds 2,030,111 2,112,265 5,034,392 5,243,332 7,084,503 7,355,597
Notes 13,055,893 2,222,504 41,933,215 38,366,668 54,989,108 40,589,172
Leases 200,563 252,843 - - 200,565 252,843
Total $ 18,981,569 § 8,362,612 3 46987,607 § 43,610,000 § 65,969,176 % 51,9’5‘2,612
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The following debt was issued during fiscal year 2004.

e $10 million from the Florida Local Government Commercial Paper Pool used to
finance the City’s recovery from Hurricane Charley

o $1,082,000 from SunTrust Bank to assist the City’s component umt in the
construction of a 12-umit below market rate housing development

e $5.363 million of draws against State Revolving Fund notes were made during
fiscal year 2004 to finance the various phases of the Sewer expansion projects
under construction.

Additional information about the City's capital assets and long-term debt can be found
beginning on page 46 in Note 3. (g) and (i) of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

Although the City has always ‘enjoyed a healthy economy because of the island’s
desirability as a tourist destibation, the August 2004 hurricane will have significant
economic impact to the City, its residents and businesses. Not only will the City incur
‘recovery costs, but also a loss of revenue, particularly from beach parking funds. As
discussed earlier, the City has re-assigned many of its employees and next year’s budget
has taken these factors into consideration. City Council is discussing the most effective
way to assist the business community and is developing a small business initiative for
implementation in subsequent fiscal years.

These factors were a paramount consideration when preparing the City's fiscal year 2005
budget. The fiscal year 2005 budget is being funded at a 2.5000 mill tax rate, 2 44.6%
rate increase over the prior year in order to address the fiscal uncertaities from
Hurricane Charley and the economic concerns for the community. The City recognizes
that expenses continue to tise and the City remains prudent in protecting the reserves that
have been slowly and carefully accumulated and to match current revenues with current
expenditures.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Sanibel's
finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Fimance Director, CITY OF SANIBEL, 800
Dunlop Road, Sanibel, Florida 33957.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Recelvables
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaids
Net pension assel
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2004

Primary Government Component Unit

Community

Governmental Business-type Housing &
Activities Activities Total Resources, [nc.

$ . 15899427 $ 417,089 $16,316,516 § 542,498

2,325,285 - 2,325,285 -

221,337 222,950 444,287 850
4,706,028 96,030 4,802,058 -
4,130,087 {4,130,087) - -
7,516 - 7,516 -

7.280 - 7,280 25,633

467,453 - 457,453 .

9,847,560 9,847,560 ]

Investments - 47,133 47,133 -
Receivables - 10,369,841 10,369,941 -
Unamortized bond issue costs 181,812 151,140 332,752 -
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): :
Land - 25,002,715 1,350,051 26,352,766 350,296
Buildings 2,155,272 ©1-199,147 2,354,419 2,328,124
Improvements other than buildings 115,810 257,403 373,313 -
Vehicles and equipment . 1,555,429 - 1,082,357 2,617,786 19,392
Infrastructure / System © 5,979,811 47,296,193 53,276,004 -
Construction in progress 600,776 5,635,324 6,136,100 1,053,841
Total assets 653,355,938 72,722,231 136,078,169 4,320,634
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other acerued liabilities 4,046,280 251,134 4,297 414 63,572
Accrued interest payable 120,245 350,831 471,076 1,717
Deferred revenue 309,224, - 309,224 -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets - 434,770 434,770 -

Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year

2,840,814 2,088,186 4,929,000 -
16,560,943 44,956,210 61,517,153 150,000

Due in more than one year
Total liabilities 23,877,506 48,081,131 71,958,837 215,289
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 28,706,225 8,397,260 37,103,485 -
Restricted for:

Capital projects 2,668,216 - 2,668,216 -

Debt service 526,805 19,655,381 20,182,186 -

Other purposes ~ 609,255 609,255 185,317
Unrestricted 7,577,186 (4,020,796) 3,556,390 3,920,028

Total net assets

See Agcompanying Notes.

$ 39478432 § 24,641,100 $64,119,532 § 4,105,345
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2004

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Invesiments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaids
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Retainages payable

Due to other funds

Due to other governments

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Inventories
Prepaids
Debt service
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

See Accompanying Notes.

Hurricane Other Total
Charley Govemmental Governmental

General 8/13/2004 Funds Funds
$ 3124211 $ 7,819,902 $ 4,955314 $ 15,899,427
2,325,285 - - 2,325,285
81,067 20,048 120,222 221,337
4,157,860 - - 4,157,860
401,757 4,137,114 167,157 4,706,028
7,516 - S 7,516
7,280 - - 7,280
10,104,976 11,977,064 5,242 693 27,324,733
189,120 2,837,505 269,259 3,295,884
- 284,255 59,063 343,318
- - 27,773 27773
202,706 - 112 202,318
174,855 23,046 6,359 204,280
4,343 4,122,730 304,881 4,431,954
571,024 7,267,536 667,447 8,506,007
7,516 - - 7,516
7,280 - - 7,280
- - 526,805 526,805
9,519,156 - - 9,519,156
- 4,709,528 1,380,225 6,089,753
- - 2,668,216 2,668,216
9,633,952 4,709,628 4,575,246 18,818,726
$ 10,104,976 $ 11,977,064 $ 5242693 3§ 27,324,733
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
_ BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2004

Fund balance totals: $ 18,818,726

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net asset are different because: -
Capital assets used in governmental activitites are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. 35,409,913

Unamortized bond issue costs and underwriter's discounts are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reporied in the funds. 181,612

Net pension asset resulting from overfunding of the general and police pension plans is not
reported in the funds. 467,453

Debt interest payable that will not be liquidated with current financial resources, Is not
reported in the funds. (120,245)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are-
not reported as revenues in the funds. 4,122,730

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds

Bonds and notes payabie $ (18,781,004)

Capital [sases payable (200,565)
Compensated absences (420,188}  (19,401,757)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 39,478,432

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Hurricane Other Total
Charley Governmental  Governmental
General 8/13/2004 Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes ’ : 7
Property $ 6671663 $ - $ 229,587 % 6,201,250
Gas 1,476,980 - - - 1,476,980
Casualty insurance premium 46,642 - - 45,642
Franchise - - 500,304 500,304
Communications services 461,392 - - 451,392
Licenses and permits 472,949 - 511,449 984,398
Intergovernmental revenues 3,958,761 - 631,502 4,590,263
Charges for services 1,359,612 11,850 93,926 1,465,388
Fines and forfeitures 179,410 - 2,577 181,987
Other revenue 219,124 5,040 845,306 869,470
Total revenues . 14,846,533 16,890 2,614,651 17,478,074
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 3,219,474 542,706 - 3,762,180
Public safety 3,058,447 950,946 64,857 4,074,250
Physical Environment 277,117 3,204,002 25,975 3,507,094
Transportation 1,424,965 379,180 - 1,804,155
Economic environment - - 794,495 794,495
Culture/Recreation 4,071,285 205,685 355,767 4,632,737
Debt service
Principal retirement 52,277 - 410,766 483,043
Interest and fiscal charges - 333 397,359 397,692
Bond issuance costs - 24,500 . 24,500
Capital outlay - - 4,512,984 4,512,984
Total expenditures 12,103,565 5,307,362 6,562,203 23,973,130
Excess revenues over (under)
expenditures 2,742,968  (5,290,472) (3,947,552) (6,495,056)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 131,125 - 2,757,157 2,888,282
Operating transfers out {1,386,982) - (1,501,300) {2,888,282)
Bonds and notes issued - 10,000,000 1,082,000 41,082,000
Total other financing sources {uses) (1,255,857} _ 10,000,000 2,337,857 11,082,000
Net change in fund balances 1,487,111 4,709,528 (1,609,695) 4,586,944
Fund balances, October 1, 2003 8,046,841 - 6,184,941 14,231,782
Fund balances, September 30, 2004 $ 9,533,952 §$ 4,709,528 § 4575246 § 18,818,726

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT CF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 4,586,944

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expendiiures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded
depreciation in the current period. .

Capital Outlay 3 4,512,984

Depreciation :  (737,830) 3,775,154

Net effact of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital and intangible assets (l.e.
disposals, transfers, donations} which inctease net assets 214,232

The issuance of Jong-term debt (e.g. bonds, notes, leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of the governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets.

Principal debt payments 5 463,043

Bond proceeds (11,082,000)  (10,618,957)

Bond issuance costs are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures. However, in

the Statement of Activities, these costs are allocated over the life of the debt as

amortization expense. This is the amount by which bond issuance expenditures exceed

amortization expense. ‘ (24,769)

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses-compensated absences (sick pay

and vacations) are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental

funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial

resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). This amount represents the

increase in the accrual of compensated absences from 9/30/03 to 9/30/04. {(75,280)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities {hat do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the funds. 4,122,730

Pension contributions exceeding the annual pension cost increases the net pension asset
on the statement of net assets. 293,556

interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in
the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds
when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of
activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of
when itis due. The increase in interest reported in the statement of activities is the result

of accruing more interest at 9/30/04 than at 9/30/03. (1,917)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 2,271,693

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgets Positive
Criginal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes
Property taxes $ 6,916,734 § 6,916,734 § 6,671,663 § (245,071)
Gas taxes . 1,336,200 1,336,200 1,476,980 140,780
Casualty insurance premium tax 38,720 36,720 46,642 9,522
Communications services tax 405,650 415,650 461,392 55,742
Licenses and permits 507,740 407,740 472,049 65,209
Intergovernmental revenues 3,028,952 3,376,216 3,958,761 582,545
Charges for services 1,170,620 1,170,020 1,359,612 189,592
Fines and forfeitures 107,600 107,300 179.410 72,410
Miscellaneous 236,500 243,488 219,124 (24,364)
Total revenues 13,747,116 14,000,088 _ 14,846,533 846,465
Expenditures
Current
General government :
Legislative 290,573 290,983 266,575 24,408
Administrative 488,293 512,775 513,216 {441)
Management information systems 372,420 394,547 316,516 78,031
Finance 512,761 548,899 514,883 34,016
Legal 347,953 554,650 605,968 (51,318)
Planning 869,519 928,000 705,347 222,653
Insurance 280,000 280,000 296,969 (16,969)
General government 3,161,519 3,509,854 3.219.474 250,380
Public safety -
Police 2,734,315 2,831,852 2,670,847 161,005
Weigh Station 15,978 3,037 - 3.037
SEMP 18,830 1,018,830 359,164 658,666
Building 424,686 463,233 28436 434,797
Public safety 3,193,810 _ 4,315,052 3,058,447 1,258,505
Physical Environment
Garbage recycling 81,164 81,164 74,860 6,504
Matural resources management 208,963 231.015 202,457 28,558
Physical Environment 290,127 312,179 277,117 35,062
Transportation-Public works 1,513,865 1,620,233 1,477,242 142,991
Culture/Recreation
Library 2,060,000 2,060,000 2,368,089 {308,089)
Parks & Recreation
Recreation complex 903,279 1,002,426 846,023 156,403
Public facilities 480,577 808,576 755,984 52,592
Seniors program 96,855 104,892 94,253 10,639
Performing arts facility 10,900 10,900 6,936 3,964
Culture/Recreation 3,551.711 3,986,794 4,071,285 (84,491)
Total expenditures 41,711,032 13,746,012 12,103,565 1,642,447
Excess revenues over expenditures 2,036,084 254,056 2,742,968 2,488,912
Qther financing sources (tses)
Operating fransfers in - - 131,125 131,125
Reserve for contingencies (710,000) (57,045) - 57,045
Operating fransfers out (1,400,365) (1,386,982} {1,386,982) -
Capital lease payment - - - -
Reserve for undercollection (332,951) {332,951) - 332,951
Total other financing sources (uses) _ (2.452,317) _{1,776.978) _ (1,255,857) 521,121
Net change in fund balances (416,233) (1,522,922) 1,487,111 3,010,033
Fund balances, Cctober 1, 2003 3,353,593 3,494,377 8,046,841 4,552,464

Fund balances, September 30, 2004

See Accompanying Notes.

$ 2937,360 § 1,971455 $ 9,533,852 § 7,562497
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
' BUDGET AND ACTUAL

HURRICANE CHARLEY 8/13/04

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Tofal revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Legislative
Administrative
Management information systems
Finance
Legal
Planning
General government
Putblic safety
Palice
SEMP
Building
Public safety
Physical Environment
Garbage recycling
Wastewater facility
Natural resources management
Physical Environment
Transportation
Public works
Beach parking facilities
Transportation
Culture/Recreation
Parks & Recreation
Recreation complex
Public facilities
Seniors program
Cuiture/Recreation
Total expenditures

Excess revenues over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Bonds issued
Debt service

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, October 1, 2003
Fund balances, September 30, 2004

See Accompanying Notes.

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeis Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)

- 3 - $ 11,850 % 11,850
- - 5,040 5,040
- - 16,890 16,890
- 50,000 34,728 15,272
- 160,000 238,264 (88,264)
- 75,000 43,779 31,221
- 75,000 86,200 (11,200)
- 50,000 28,843 21,157
- 75,000 110,892 (35.892)
- 475,000 542,708 (67,706)
- 500,000 633,548 (133,548)
- 200,000 21‘5.258 {15,258)
- 100,000 102,140 (2,140)
- 800,000 950,946 (150,946}
- 8,000,000 2,842 547 5,157,453
- 20,000 316,235 (296,235)
- 20,000 45,220 {25,220}
- 8,040,000 3,204,002 4,835,998
- 500,000 316,365 183,635
- 50,000 62,825 {12,825)
- 550,000 379,190 170,810
- 75,000 112,053 (37.053)
- 50,000 89,241 (39,241)
- 10,000 4,391 5,609
- 135,000 205,685 {70,685)
- 10,000,000 5,282,629 4,717,471
- {10,000,000) {5,265,639) 4,734,361
- 10,000,000 10,000,000 -
- - (24.833) {24,833}
- 10,000,000 9,875,167 {24,833)
- - 4,709,528 4,709,528
- 8 - $ 4709528 § 4,709,528
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
September 30, 2004

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Due from other governments

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Resfricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Assessments receivable

Total restricted assets
Unamortized bond issue costs
Capital assets

Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Infrastructure/System
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assels

See Accompanying Notes.

Enterprise Funds

Sanibel
Sewer Beach
System Parking Total
$ - $ 417,089 $ 417,089
222,950 - 222,950
90 95,940 96,030
223,040 513,029 736,069
9,847,560 - 9,847,560
47,133 - 47,133
10,369,941 - 10,369,941
20,264,634 - - 20,264,634
151,140 - 151,140
977,409 372,642 1,350,051
273,216 123,024 396,240
- 486,776 486,776
1,877,062 388,923 2,265,985
53,430,541 - 53,430,541
5,535,324 - 5,535,324
(7,388,129) {376,313) (7,764,442)
54,705,423 995,052 55,700,475
75,121,197 995,052 76,116,249
$ 75,344,237 $ 1,508,081 $ 76,852,318
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
- STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
September 30, 2004

Enterprise Funds

Sanibel
Sewer Beach
System Parking Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Account payabie and other current liabilites  $ 158,467 $ 56,072 214,539
Accrued payroll 30,575 6,020 36,595
Due fo other funds 4,130,087 - 4,130,087
Total current liabilities 4,319,129 62,092 4,381,221
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets
Contracts payable 434,770 - 434,770
Accrued interest payable 350,831 - 350,831
Debt:
Revenue bonds 260,000 - 260,000
Notes 1,828,186 - 1,828,186
Total debt 2,088,186 - 2,088,186
Total current liabilities payable from
restricted assets 2,873,787 - 2,873,787
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences _ 44 625 12,164 56,789
Debt: ‘
Revenue bonds 4,794,392 - 4,794,392
Notes 40,105,029 - 40,105,029
Total debt 44,899,421 - 44,899,421
Total noncurrent liabilities 44,944 046 12,164 44,956,210
Total liabilities 52,136,962 74,256 52,211,218
NET ASSETS ‘
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 7,402,208 995,052 8,397,260
Restricted for: '
Debt service 19,655,381 - 19,655,381
Renewal and replacement 142,292 - 142,292
Construction 466,963 - 466,963
Unrestricted (4,459,569) 438,773 (4,020,796}
Total net assets $§ 23207275 $ 1,433,825 § 24,641,100

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Sanibel
Sewer Beach
System Parking Total
OPERATING REVENUE
Licenses and permits $ - $ 88,469 88,469
Charges for services 3,044,651 888,797 3,933,448
Fines and forfeitures 21,984 - 21,984
Miscellaneous 1,629 250 1,879
Totat operating revenue 3,068,264 977,516 4,045,780
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 847,864 366,835 1,214,699
Contractual services, materials & supplies 848,027 407,857 1,255,884
Utilities 292,954 24 475 317,429
Depreciation 2,154,893 67,265 2,222,148
Insurance 9,937 8,200 18,137
Administrafive charges 318,563 297,656 616,219
Repairs and maintenance 282,422 22,838 305,261
Total operating expenses 4,754,660 1,195,117 5,049 777
QOperating loss {1,686,396) (217,601) (1,903,997)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) :
Taxes 1,263,404 - 1,263,404
Interest income 126,047 4,947 130,994
Special assessment interest income 260,110 - 260,110
Intergovernmental 3,807 154,450 158,257
Gain on disposition of equipment - 24,225 24,225
interest expense and fiscal charges {1,478,156) - (1,478,156)
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 175,212 183,622 358,834
Loss before contributions (1,511,184) {33,979) (1,545,163)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 200,578 - 200,573
Change in net assets (1,310,606) {(33,979) (1,344,585)
Total net assets, October 1, 2003 24,517,881 1,467,804 25,985,685

Total net assets, September 30, 2004 $

23,207,275 $ 1,433,825 $ 24,641,100

See Accompanying Notes,
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Sanibel
Sewer Beach
System Parking Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 3,044,445 § 977,516 4,021,961
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,670,214) (794,236) (2,464,450)
Cash payments to employees for services (837,973) {369,076) {1,207,049)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 536,258 {185,796) 350,462
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES : o .
Advances from other funds, net v 2,059,826 - 2,059,826
Subsidy from local agency grants - 3,808 208,650 212,458
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 2,063,634 208,650 2,272,284
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING .
ACTIVITIES I o
Collection of taxes for bond debt service oL 1,263,404 - 1,263,404
Proceeds from capital debt 5,363,802 - 5,363,802
Capital contributions 200,578 - 200,578
Collection of special assessments , 2,311,752 - 2,311,752
Acquisition/Construction of capital assets {(6,603,062) {170,598) (6,773,660)
Principal paid on capital debt {2,047,255) - (2,047,255)
Interest paid on capital debt {1,408,338) - (1,408,338)
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (919,119) {170,598) (1,089,717)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Proceeds from maturities of investments 37,655 - 37,655
Interest and dividends received 336,115 4,947 341,062
Net cash provided by investing activities 373,770 4,947 378,717
Net increase (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 2,054,543 (142,797) 1,911,746
Cash and equivalents, October 1, 2003 7,793,017 550,886 8,352,903
Cash and equivalents, September 30, 2004 $ 9847560 § 417,089 $ 10,264,649

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS -
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Sanibel
Sewer Beach
System Parking Total

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by

operating activities
Operating loss $ (1.686,396) $§ (217,601) $ (1,903,097)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss fo net cash
provided by operating activities

Depreciation 2,154,893 67,255 2,222,148

Net (increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivables {23,819) - (23,819)

Net increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 81,689 (33,209) 48,480
Accrued payroll and compensated absences 9,891 (2,241) 7,650
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities 3 536,258 $ (185,796) 3 350,462

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
September 30, 2004

Pension
Trust Agency
Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 53,004 $ 74,982
Investments, at market value
Mutual funds:
Equity 6,257,371 -
Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds:
Fixed income 4,629,652 -
Equity 1,612,374 -
Total investments at fair value 12,499,397 -
Receivables 17,545 -
Total assets 12,569,946 74,982
LIABILITIES
Refunds payable and other liabilities - -
Due to other governments - 74,982
Total liabilities - 74,982
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 12,569,946 $ -

See Accompanying Notes.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

ADDITIONS
Confributions
Employer
State of Florida
Plan members

" Total contributions

Investment income
Net increase in fair value of invesments
Interest, dividends and miscellaneous

Total investment earnings

Less investment expense
Net investment earnings
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits paid
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits
Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

See Accompanying Notes.
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Pension
Trust
Funds

1,114,665
46,642
139,326

' 1,300,633

980,210
22930
1,003,140

(77,437)

925,703

2,226,336

618,283
47,762

666,045

1,560,291

11,009,655

$ 12,569,946



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Sanibel, Florida (the "City") was incorporated November 5, 1974. The Charter of the City
was adopted pursuant to the Laws of Florida, Chapter 74-606, as from time to time amended. The
City operates under the Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services:
general administrative, public safety, physical environment, wastewater utility services, transportation,
human services, below market rate housing, culturefrecreation and capital improvernents.

The Basic Financial Statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), as the successor fo the National Council on Governmental
Accounting (NCGA), is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant City accounting policies are described below.

The accompanying financial statements present the combined financial position, results of operations
and cash flows of the applicabie fund types governed by the City of Sanibel.

(a) Defining the Governmental Reporting Entity

In determining the agencies, Boards or Authorities to be included in the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, the City has considered all potential component units. The decision to include
a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in
GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Enfity.

A component unit is a legally separate organization for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. Under criteria established by GASB No. 14,
component units are to be either blended with the primary government or presented discretely.
For a component unit to be blended it must meet one or both of the following two situations: 1)
the board of the component unit is substantively the same as that of the primary government or
2) the component unit serves the primary government exclusively, or almost exclusively. Based
on the following criteria, the City, as the primary government, includes Community Housing and
Resources, inc. (CHR) as a component unit using the discrete method of presentation.
Although the board of CHR is not selected by the City Council and CHR provides services
almost entirely to the citizens of the City of Sanibel, CHR is fiscally dependent upon the City in
that there is a financial burden to the City and the nature and significance of the relationship
between the City and CHR is such that excluding GHR from the City’s financial statements
would be misleading and Incomplete.

Complete financial statements for CHR may be obtained at the entity's administrative offices
located at 2401 Library Way, Sanibel, Florida 33957.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA |
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004 -

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(b)

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement
of changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has
been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewiseg, the
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for
which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of aCtIVltleS demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges
to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues. ,

Separate flnanOial statements are provided for governmental funds proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major.individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting and financial statement presentatlon

. The govemment—wrde t'nancral statements are reported using . the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenseas are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as.soon-as all eligibility requ1rements |mposed by the provider have

- been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accruaf basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized

-as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available

when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.. However, debt service

- expenditures, as well as expenditures. related to compensated absences and claims and

judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

31



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

()

Measurement focus and basis of accounting and financial statement presentation, continued

Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different measurement focus and
basis. of accounting than theé government-wide statements’ governmental column, a

‘reconciliation is presented on the page following each statement, which Briefly explains the

adjustments necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the governmental
activities of the government-wide presentation.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current
fiscal period Is considered to be susceptible o accrual as revenue of the current period. All
other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the government
recelves cash.

The City reports the following major Governmental Funds S
The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted forin
another-fund.

The Hurricane Charley 8/13/2004 Fund accounts for the $10 million borrowed to finance
the recovery from natural disaster that impacted the island August 13, 2004.

The City reports the following major Proprietary Funds
The Sanibel Sewer System Fund accounts for the activity of providing customers with
wastewater disposal services. The Sewer System operates sewage treatment plants;
- sewage pumping stations, the colléction systém and a wastewater reuse system.

Additionally, the City repon‘s the foﬂowmg fund type:
The -Pension Trust Fund accounts for the activities of the General Employees' and
Municipal Police Officers' retirement plans, which accumulate resources for pension
benefit payments to qualified employees. Contributions from the State of Florida to the
Municipal Police Officers’ retirement plan in the amount of $46,642 are also reported as a
revenue (Casualty Insurance Premium Tax) and expenditure in the General Fund.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, are generally followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.
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CITY OF SA'NIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(c)

Measurement focus and basis of accounting and financial statement presentation, continued

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital
grants and contfibutions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation. The
principal operating revenues of the Sanibel Sewer System enterprise fund and of the Beach
Parking Fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
Sanibel Sewer System and Beach Parking enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative e xpenses, and d epreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
eXxpénseés not mesting this definition are feportéd as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, It is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted, as they are needed.

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

1)  Deposits and investments

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, cash on deposit with financial
institutions, and funds on deposit in the Local Government Surpius Funds Trust Fund
Investment Pool administered by the Fiorida State Board of Administration. The City
maintains pooled cash for s ubstan{ially all City funds e xcept for restricted cash and
investments held with trustees. Equity in pocled cash is an accounting and investment
tool employed by the City by which the C|ty is able to invest large amounts of idle cash for
short periods of time thereby maximizing earning potent[al The pooled cash is included
with cash and cash equivalents. Interest income is allocated based upon the
proportionate balance of each fund's equity in pooled cash and investments. For the
purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

The City has implemented GASB Statement No. 31, which calls for investment reporting at
fair value at Balance Sheet date. Since the difference between fair value and cost is
minimal at Balance Sheet date, investments are stated at cost, or anﬁ‘ortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Investments held by the City's Pension Trust Funds are carried
at fair value. ' '
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 1.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity, continued

2)

4)

5)

Receivables and payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are reported as
"due from other funds” or "due fo other funds." Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements'as "internal balances.”

Inventories and prepaid items

. Inventories consisting primarily of materials and supplies held for consumption are stated

at cost. For its governmental fund type inventories, the City utilizes the consumption
method of accounting, which provides that expenditures are recognized when inventory is
used. '

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted assets

Certain proceeds of enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside
for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their
use is limited by applicable bond covenants.

Capital assets . ) ,

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, bike paths, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The
government defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of more than
$750 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at -
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at an estimated fair market vaiue at the date of donation. -

All capital assets, including those acquired prior to the implementation of GASB-334 have
been reported. :

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets. The ranges of useful lives are as follows:

Assets Years
Buildings 15-50
Improvements other than buildings 15
Infrastructure ' 30
Vehicles and Equipment 5-10
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 1.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity, continued

6)

7}

The cost of assets retired or sold, together with the related accumulated depreciation, is
removed from the accounts and any gain or loss on disposition is credited or charged to
earnings.

Interest is capitalized on enterprise fund assets constructed with tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred
from the date of the borrowing until completion of the project construction with interest
earned on invested proceeds over the same period.

Compensated absences

The City's regular full-time (40-hour-per-week) employees may accrue a maximum of 240
vacation hours. Regularly scheduled pari-time employees who regularly work at last 16
hours per week accrue vacation leave in proportion to the amount of time worked. Sick
leave accumulation is unlimited. Upon termination, employees can be paid for all accrued
vacation time and 1/4 of all accrued sick time to a maximum of 390 hours. These
benefits plus their related taxes are classified as compensated absences. The
accumulated compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide
financial statements and proprietary funds. Typically, the liability for compensated
absences in the Governmental funds has been primarily liquidated form the General Fund.
For Governmental Funds, the amounts normally liquidated with expendable available
financial resources are accrued in the individual funds and the remaining portion {the
amount estimated fo be used in subsequent fiscal years) is maintained separately and
represents a reconciling itern between the fund and government-wide presentation.

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund type in the fund financial
statements, long-term debf and other long-term ebligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. Bond premiUms 'an'd discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt. '

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recogn:ze bond premiums and
discounts as well as bond i issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other fmancmg sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Séptember 30, 2004

Note 1.Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(d) Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity, continued

8)

10)

11)

12)

13)

Unamortized Losses

Losses from debt refunding are reperted in the accompanying financial statements as a
deduction to bonds payable and will be charged to operations using the effective-interest
method by amortizing the loss over the shorter of the life of the old bond or the life of the
new bond, which is reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements.

Utility connection (Impact) fees

The City utilizes utility connection fees as a means for funding capital expansion required
to meet sewer system demands resuiting from growth. These fees are recorded as
capital contribution revenue in the Enterprise Funds when charged

Special assessments

The City levies special assessments against benefited property owners for construction of
wastewater utllity expansion in certain areas of the City. The special assessments are
recorded as capital contributions net of refunds In the enterprise funds.

Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue recorded in the Other Governmental Fund relates to occupational
licenses and impact fees, which are not earned until the subsequent fiscal year.

Intragovernmental allocation of administrative expenses

The General Fund incurs certain administrative expenses for other funds, including
accounting, legal, data processing, personnel administration, and other services. The
governmental funds that received these services were charged $80,582 and the
enterprise funds that received these services were charged $616,218 fiscal year 2004.
Administrative expenses not directly charged to a fund are allocated as Indirect Expenses
on the Statement of Activities.

Fund equity and deficit fund equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 2. Stewardship, compliance and accountability

(a)

Budgets - Legal Compliance

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
except for the following funds for the respective reasons:

FUND TYPE and NAME REASON

Special Revenue Fund
Father Madden Estate No expenditures were planned for the year
Capital Project Funds .
Gulf Pines/Gulf ShoresiWest Gulf Drive Beach Restoration No expenditures were plannad for the year
Beach Road Paving Special Assessment . No expenditures were planned for the year

Sanibel Harbor Canal Trimming ) No expendifures were planned for the year

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt
service funds, certain capital project funds, and enterprise funds. All annual appropriations
lapse at fiscal year end and are not automatically re-appropriated the following fiscal year. Cn
July 1st of each year, the Lee County Property Appraiser supplies the City with the assessed
taxable valuation of the property located within the City on which the City's millage (property
tax) rate for the next budget year will bé based. Prior to July 31st, a public hearing is held at
which a proposed budget is presented to City Council and, by Resolution, City Council
establishes a proposed millage (property tax) rate for subsequent the fiscal year which begins
on October 1%, :

Based on the State of Florida "TRIM" (Truth in Millage) calendar, the City holds two public
hearings on the tentative millage rate and tentative budget during the month of September. On
or before September 30" the budget is legally adopted by Resolution. Five-yearfinancial plans
are also adopted for all Capital Project Funds.

Budget amounts are presented as originally adopted and as amended by City Councll Budget

‘ amendments adopted by Resolution of City Council, are used to revise the budgeted amounts
) through the year. The City Manager may amend the budget within exrstmg approprlatlons of

individual funds.

The level of control whereby expenditures cannot exceed-appropriations is at.the fund level.

‘During the fi scal year ended September 30 2004, various supplemental approprlatlons were

approved by Clty council i in accordance wnth thls pollcy
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Septernber 30, 2004

Note 2. Stewardship, compliance and accountability, Continued

(b)

()

(d)

Excess of expenditures over appropriations

For the year ended September 30, 2004, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following
funds, the legal leve! of budgetary control:

Governmental activities:

Vehicle Weight Permits - $ (16,554)
Below Market Rate Housing Fund {2,002,468)
2002 $3.825M General Obligation Debt Service (1,799)
Environmentally Sensitive Land Restoration (3,780)

These over-budget expenditures were funded by available fund balance and/or revenues
exceeding amounts budgeted except for the Below Market Rate Housing Fund, which
unbudgeted expenditure was the result for a land for debt swap between the City and
Community Housing and Resources, Inc. In December 2003, the City accepted title to land
owned by its discretely presented component unit, Community Housing and Resource, Inc.
(CHR). In exchange, the City cancelled its note receivable from CHR in the amount of
$2,474,204,

Deficit Fund Balances or Net Assets of Individual Funds
The following individual fund a had deficit fund balance as of September 30, 2004:

Governmental activities:
Sanibe! Harbor Canal Trimming $ (1,936)

The Sanibel Harbor Canal Trimming capital project fund had a deficit fund balance if $1,936
as of September 30, 2004. This deficit resulted from the project having been budgeted for
the fiscal year 2005, but begun prior to the end of fiscal year 2004. Management is of the
opinion that this deficit will be billed and collected in the subsequent fiscal year.

Property taxes

Alf real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 of each year,
or as soon thereafter as the tax roll is certified by the Lee County Property Appraiser, and
become delinquent on April 1 of the following year. The Lee County Tax Collector does the
billing and collection of all property taxes for the City. '

The Tax Collector mails to each property owner on the tax roll a notice of taxes levied by the
various governmental entities in the County. Discounts are allowed for payment of property
taxes made between November 1 and March 1. Tax certificates for the full amount of any
unpaid taxes or assessments must be seld not later than June 1st of each year.
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 2. Stewardship, compliance and accountability, Continued

Note 3.

(d) Property taxes, continued

The laws of Florida provide for procedures for collecting delinquent faxes, including applicable
tax certificate sales, tax deed sales and tangible personal property seizure and sales.
Enforceable lien date is approximately two years after taxes become delinquent and occurs
only upon request of a holder of a delinquent tax certificate. Key dates in the property tax cycle
(latest date, where appropriate) are as follows:

July 1 Assessment roll certified, unless extension granted
by Florida Department of Revenue,

.93 days later {(normally October 1) . Millage resolution approved and taxes levied
following certification of assessment roll.

November 1 . Property taxes become due and payable (maximum
discount, i.e., 4 percent).

April 1 Taxes become delinquent (lien date).

Prior to June 1 Tax certificates sold.

The City is, in general, permitted by the State to levy property taxes up to $10 per $1,000 of assessed
valuation for general governmental services; The general operating, sewer and pond apple park
voted debt service tax rates for the year ended September 30, 2004 were 1.7291, 0.3275 and
0.05095, respectively, per $1,000 of assessed property valuation.

Detailed notes on all funds
(a) Deposits and investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds except for those
in which the cash must be segregated due to bond indenture or other legal restrictions such as in the
pension frust funds.

Deposits . : _

Deposits with qualified public depositories whose values exceed the limits of federal depository
insurance are entirely insured or collateralized pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 280, Florida
Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act). Under this Act, financial institutions which are qualified
public depositories place with the State Treasurer securities which have a market value equal to or in
excess of the average daily balance times the depository coilateral-pledging level required pursuant
to Chapter 280 as computed and reported monthly or 25% of the average menthly balance,
whichever is greater. The Public Deposit Security Trust Funds have a procedure to allocate and
recover losses in the event of default or insolvency. When public deposits are made in accordance
with Chapter 280, no public depositor shall be liable for any loss thereof. All City depositories at
year-end were designated as qualified public depositeries. The bank balance of deposits insured by
the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation or pursuant to. Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes was
$10,025,714 as of September 30, 2004.
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Note 3.

Detailed notes on alf funds, Continued
(a) Deposits and investments, continued

investments

Florida Statutes 218.415 and the City's Investment Policy Resolution # 96-85 authorize investments
in the Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (SBA), Securities and Exchange
Commission registered money market funds, interest-bearing savings. accounts, certificates of
deposit, direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury, Federal agencies and instrumentalities. repurchase
agreements, collateralized mortgage obligations when the purpose of the purchase is to hold such
investment to maturity, regulated bond mutual funds and investment grade obligations of state and
locat governments and public authorities. Additionally, the Pension Trust Funds are authorized to
invest in corporate bonds and equity securities.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments
(including Repurchase Agreements) and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, the City's investments
are categorized as follows to give an indication of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the
City:

Category 1 Includes investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its
agents in the City's name, or held by the City's agents in a Depository Trust Company custodial
account.

Category 2 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by a counter party's trust
department or agent in the City's name.

Category 3 Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held by a
counter party, its trust department or agent, but not in the City's name.

Investments in the Local Government Surplus Funds Investment Pool Trust Fund (SBA) are not
categorized, as they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

The City invests fund throughout the year with the Local Government Surplus Funds Investment Pool
Trust Fund (SBA), which is administered by the State Board of Administration, under the regulatory
oversight of the State of Florida. The SBA pool's investments are recorded at amortized cost,
consistent with GASE Statement No. 31. The value of the City's position In the pool, an external "2a-
7" like investment pool, is the $ame as the value of the pool shares.
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Note 3.

Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

{a) Deposits and investments, continued

There were no losses during the period due to default by counter parties to investment transactions,
and the City had no other types of investments during the year other than those described above.

Type Category 1 Fair Value

GENERAL INVESTMENTS
US Government Agency Securities $ 2372418 $ 2372418
INVESTMENTS NOT SUBJECT TO CATEGORIZATION
Pension invesiment Pool 12,499,397
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund
Investment Pool (SBA) 16,213,111
Total investments $ 31,084,926
Plus Deposits:

Checking Accounts 10,025,714

Checking Account: Pension trust funds 52,677
Total Deposits $ 10,078,391
TOTAL Deposits and Investments $ 41,163,317

" Plus: Cash on Hand 560

TOTAL Cash, Deposits and Investments $ 41,163,877

The following schedule reconciles the deposit and investment information above fo the City's-wide
State-of Net Assets and Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets:
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| Current I Restricted | TOTAL
Cash & Cash & Cash &
Equivalents  Investments Equivalents Investments Investments

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

General $3,124,211 $2,325,285 - $ - $ 5,449,496

Hurricane Charley 7,819,902 - - - 7,819,902

Other Governmental 4,955,314 - - - 4,955,314

Total Governmental 15,899 427 2,325,285 - - 18,224,712
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Sewer System - - 9,847,560 47,133 9,894,693

Beach Parking 417,089 - - - 417,089

Total Business-type 417,089 - 9,847,560 47,133 10,311,782
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Pension Funds - - 53,004 12,499,397 12,552,401

Agency Funds - - 74,982 - 74,982

Total Fiduciary - - 127.986 12499397 | 12627383

TOTAL $16,316.616 $2.325.285 $9.975546 $12546.530  $41.163.877



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

{b) Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments of the proprietary funds represent resources to be restricted for
capital improvements, debt service and renewal and replacement.

Sanibel
Sewer
System
Restricted for Debt Service ' $ 9,285,438
Restricted for Renewal and Replacement 142,292
Restricted for Capital Projects 466,963
Total restricted assets $ 9,894,693
{c) Accounts and special assessments receivable
Hurricane Other
Charley Governmental
General 8/13/04 Funds Total
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Unrestricted
Accounts receivable $ 81067 $ 20,048 $ 120,222 § 221,337
Due from other funds 4,157,860 - - 4,157,880
Due from other governments 401,757 4,137,114 167,157 4,706,028

Total unrestricted receivables $ 4640684 $ 4157162 § 287379 § 9085225

Sanibel Beach
Sewer System Parking Fund _Total

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted .

Accounts receivable . $ 2220950 § - $ 222950

Due from ofher governments a0 95,940 96,030
Total unrestricted 223.040 95.940 318.980
Restricted

Assessments receivable 10,368,941 - 10,369,941
Total net receivables $10,5929081 § 95940 $ 10.688,921
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Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

(d) Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities

Hurricane Other
_ Charley  Governmental

General 8/13/04 Funds Total
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Accounts and contracts payable $ 189,120 $3,121,760 $ 328,320 $ 3,639,200
Due to other governments 202,706 - M2 202,818
Accrued Liabilities 174,855 23,046 6,359 204,260
Total $ 566,681 $3.144806 $§ 334791 § 4046278

Sanibel

Sewer Beach

System Parking Fund Total
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES o
Accounts and contracts payable $ 593,237 $§ 56,072 $ 649,309
Accrued Liabilities - 381,406 6,020 387.426
Total S 974643 $ 62,092 1,036,735
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Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued
{e) Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of Sepiember 30, 2004 is as follows:

Due to/from other funds

Receivable
Fund Payable Fund Purpose for Balance Amount

FRDAP-Community
Park Acquisition Dobbs

General House : Awaiting grant reimbursement $ 415
US Fish & Wildlife

General Service-Firesafe Grant Awaiting grant reimbursement 25,975
Beach Road Paving

General Special Assessment Awaiting final assessment payment 1,383

City's support of the sewer system primarily
related to effluent disposal/reuse as required
by regulatory agencies : 4,130,087

Total $ 4,157,860

General Sanibel Sewer System

Interfund transfers

Transfers In

Nonmajor
Transfers Out General Governmental Total
General $ - $ 2,757,157 $ 2,757,157
Nonmajor Governmental 131,125 - 131.125

Total 3 131125 $§ 2757157 § 2.888282

Transfers out from the General and from Nonmajor Governmental Funds, are used to provide
funding for Debt Service Funds for which either a specific revenue or any legally non-ad valorem
revenue source is pledged as well as for funding certain other Special Revenue Funds and Capital

Projects Funds.
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Note 3.

Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

Intergovernmental Revenues

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Operating Grants & Shared Revenues
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Culture/Recreation
Federal shared revenue
State shared revenue
Local shared revenue
Capital Grant Revenue
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Culture/Recreation
Other Inter-local Agreements

Total

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Operating Grants & Shared Revenues
Physical Environment

Transportation
Total '
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Other
Governmental
General Funds Total
5 41,228 $ - § 41,228
- 210,219 210,219
- 107,122 107,122
56,973 - 56,973
718,965 - 718,965
3,172 - 3,172
309,943 - 309,843
- 18,684 18,684
- 236,236 236,236
2,828,480 59241 2887721
$ 3958761 & 631502 54590263
Sanibel Sewer Beach Parking
© System Fund Total
$ 3807 % -3 3,807
- 154,450 . 154,450
$ 3,807 & 1 54,450 $ 158,257



CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2004

Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

(g) Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2004 was as follows:

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land .
Construstion in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings :
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvemnents other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Total capital assets, being depreciated
L.ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure
Vehicles and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balances
$ 20,022,253 § 4,080,462 $ - § 25002715
383,230 217,546 - 600,776
21,305,483 4,298,008 - 25,603,491
3,666,514 143,525 - 3,810,039
3,086,988 - - 3,086,986
8,957,148 - - 8,957,148
3,829,315 366,300 (155,491) 4,040,124
19,539,963 508,825 {155,491) 19.394,297
(1,536,819) {117,948) - (1,654,767)
(2,950,742) (20,334) - (2,971,076)
(2,660,035) (317,302) - (2,977,337)
(2,277,323) (282,248) 74,874 (2,484,695)
{9,424,919) {737,830} 74,874 (10,087,875)
10,115,044 {228,005) {80,617) 9,806,422
$ 31,420,527 § 4,070,003 % (80,617) § 35,409,813
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases  Balances
5 1,347,851 $ 2,200 $ - $ 1,350,051
23,899,636 4,805,791 (23,170,103) 5,535,324
25,247 AB7 4,807,991 (23,170,103) G,885,375
398,200 - {1,960) 396,240
486,776 - - 486,776
28,872,543 24,557,998 - 53,430,541
2,006,353 422,266 {162,634) 2,265,985
31,763,872 24,980,264 {164,594) 58,579,542
(163,887) {33,2086) - (197,093)
(126,806} {102,567) - (229,373)
{4,114,787) {2,019,561) - {6.134,348)
{1,309,891) (66,814) 173,077 (1,203,628)
(5,715,371) (2,222,148) 173,077 (7,764,442)
26,048,501 22,758,116 8,483 48,815,100
$ 51,285,988 § 27,566,107 § (23,161,620) $ 55,700,475
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Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued
(g} Capital assets, continued
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government _ N $ 70,892
Public safety ) 89,313
Physical environment 61,015
Transportation 426,325
Culture/recreation 90,285 -
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities $ 737.830

Business-type activities:

Sanibel Sewer System $ 2,154,893
Beach Parking . 67,255
Total depreciation expense-business-type activities § 2222148

(h) Construction Commitmenis

The City has active construction projeéts as of September 30, 2004. At"yea'r-end, the City's
commitments with contractors are as follows:

. Total Remaining
Governmental activities : Contract Spent to Date Contract
Special Revenue Funds :

Hurricane Charley 8/13/04 (1) $8,000,000 $ (2,842,547 $5,157,453
Capital Project Funds N

Ball Field Relocation _ 558,178 _{449.115) 59,063
Total governmental activities $8.558,178 $ (3.291.662) $5,216,516

o 7 Total Remaining

Business-type activities Contract Spent to Date Contract
Utility Expansions (2}

Sewer expansion Phase IllA $5,139,367 47 4 $ 434463

(1) This is a contract for debris removal resulting from Hurricane Charley for which 80% will be
reimbursable from FEMA and 5% from the State of Florida

(2) The sewer expansion projects are financed by State Revolving Loan Funds, to be repaid
through a combination of Special Assessments from benefited property owners, operating
revenue and ad valorem taxes.
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Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

() Long-term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in the City's bonded and other indebtedness for the year

ended September 30, 2004:

General Capital
Obligation  Revenue Notes Leases
Governmental Activities Bonds Bonds Payable Pavable Total
Original amounts $3.825000 $3,190.000 $14.330,097 §$ 252842 $21.598,839
Debt payable-beginning 3,775,000 2,112,265 2,222 505 252,842 8,362,612
Debt issued - - 11,082,000 - 11,082,000
Debt retired {(80.000) (82,154) (248,612) (52,277) (463,043)
Debt payable-ending 3,695,000 2,030,111 13,055,893 200,565 18,981,569
Less amounts recorded as
current liabilities (85,000) (85,932) {2,331,799) {54,043) (2,556,774)
Long-term debt-ending $3,610.000 $1,944179 $10.724.094 § 146522 $16.424.795
Revenue Notes
Business-type activities Bonds Payable Total
Original amounts $5,620.000 $45,239,547 $54,887.522
Debt payable-beginning $5,620,000 $38,366,668 $43,986,668
Debt issued - 5,363,802 5,363,802
Debt retired (250,000) (1,797,255) (2,047,255)
Debt payable-ending 5,370,000 41,933,215 47,303,215
Less deferred amounts for:
Issuance discounts (19,105) - (19,105)
Loss on refunding (296,503) - {296.503)
, 5,054,392 41,933,215 46,987,607
tess amounts recorded as
current liabilities (260,000) (1.828,186} _(2.088.186)
Long-term debt-ending $4.794.392 $40,105.029 $44.899.421
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Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued
() Long-term Debt, continued

General Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

$3,825,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2002, interest payable varying
from 2.0% to 4.750% due semiannually on August 1 and February 1,
principal payments due annually on August 1, collateralized with Voted Debt
Service Ad Valorem Taxes, final payment due December 2031

Revenue Bonds Payable

$3,190,000 - Revenue bonds, Series 1979, collateralized by land, franchise
fees and occupational licenses, annual payments of $187,477 including
interest payable at 5%, final payment due December 17, 2020.

Notes Payable

$1,250,000 Promissory Note dated September 1997, collateralized by any-
legally available non-ad valorem revenue, annual payments of -$120,260--

including interest payable at 4.9794%, due September 2012.

$10,000,000 note payable dated September 29, 2004, collateralized by any
legally available non-ad valorem revenue, annual payments of $2,000,000
and a final payment of $4,000,000, accrued inferestat a variable rate, due
September 2008

$1,082,000 note payable to a financial institution, collateralized by any legally
available non-ad valorem revenue, accrued interest payable at 3.348%,
due February 2019, ‘ ‘

$1,348,997 note payable to a financial institution, collateralized by the Sanibel
Causeway Surplus revenues, accrued interest payable at 3.85%, due July
20089.

$650,000 note payable to a financial institution,‘cbllateralized by any legally

available non-ad valorem revenue, monthly payments of $5,006 including
interest payable at 4.21%, due July 2014 -

Capital Leases Payable

$252,842 capital lease payable to Leasing 2, Inc. fora vegetation grinder. The
lease is coliateralized by the related equipment that was capitalized in the
amount of the lease and included as part of the capital assets of the City.
The lease requires annual debt service payment of $54,044 including
principal and interest accruing at 3.07% through November 2007,

Total General Long-Term Debt
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$3,695,000

$2,030.111

778,012

10,000,000

1,082,000

722,503

473.378
$13.055.893

$ 200,565

$18,081,569
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September 30, 2004

Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

(i) Long-term Debt, continued

Enterprise Funds - Long-term Debt

Revenue Bonds Pavable

$5,620,000 Sanibel Sewer Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2004,
collateralized by the net revenues of the sewer system, which are serial
bonds with interest from 2.0% to 3.9% payable semi-annually, principal

payable from 2004 through 2021.
Less: Deferred loss on refunding
Unamortized discount

Notes Payable

‘Disbursements, service fees and capltalized interest on the $14,429,365 State
of Florida revolving loan #080, collateralized by special assessments, ad
valorem taxes and the net revenues of the sewer system, accrued lnterest

payable at 1.54%; due August, 2022.

Disbursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $5,886,759 State of
Florida revolving loan #504P, collateralized by special assessments, ad
valorem taxes and the net revenues of the sewer system, accrued interest

payable at 1.59%; due February, 2020.

Disbursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $7,980,398 State of
Florida revolvmg loan #060, collateralized by voted debt service ad valorem
taxes, special assessments and net revenues of the sewer system,

accrued interest payabie at 1.56%; due October, 2021.

Disbursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $5,351,015 State of
Fiorida revelving loan #0890, collateralized by voted debt service ad valorem
taxes, special assessments and net revenues of the sewer system,

accrued interest payable at 1.54%; due December, 2022.

Disbursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $6,827,886 State of
Florida revolving loan #WWG120, collateralized by voted debt service ad
valorem taxes, special assessmenis and net revenues of the sewer
system, accrued interest payable at 1.56%; due June, 2023.

Disbursements, service fees and capitalized interest for a $4,764,124 State of
Florida revolving loan # WWG51 1A, collateralized by voted debt service ad
valorem taxes, special assessments and net revenues of the sewer
system, accrued interest payable at 1.335%, due August, 2023.
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$ 5,370,000
(296,503)
(19,105)
$5.054,392

13,820,674

4,866,095

7,231,401

4,804,189

6,498,153

4,712,703
$41,933.215
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004 '

Note 3. Detailed notes on all funds, Continued

(iy Long-term Debt, continued

Governmental Activities

Year ending General Obligation Bonds Revenue Bonds Notes Payable
September 30, Principal Interest Principal Inferest Erincipal Interest
2005 $ 850003 166,658 $ 85932 § 101545 $§ 2,331,799 § 315498
2006 85,000 154,858 90,229 97,248 2,343,089 266,423
2007 85,000 152,945 94,740 92,737 2,354,874 212,223
2008 90,000 150,735 ' 99,477 88,000 4,367,112 157,570
2009 ' 90,000 148,125 104,451 83,025 352,547 62,295
2010-2014 505,000 £94,253 606,015 331,370 945,807 157,719
2015-2019 600,000 590,400 773,133 164,252 360,665 36,225
2020-2024 755,000 441,618 176,134 11,343 o - -
2025-2029 950,000 247,000 - - - -
2030-2034 450,000 32,300 - - - -

Total $3695000 § 2768797 $2030111 S 060520 § 13055893 .$1.207,955

Business-type Activities

Year ending Revenue Bonds Notes Payable
Septernber 30, Principal Interest Principal Inferest
2005 260,000 162,409 1,828,186 1,629,197
2006 265,000 157,209 1,896,433 1,719,678
2607 270,000 151,909 1,968,156 1,647,955
2008 270,000 146,508 2,042,712 1,573,398
2009 275,000 140,839 2,120,214 1,495,897
20102014 1,495,000 592,541 11,584,138 6,496,421
2015-2019 1,745,000 342,483 13,049,721 5,030,840
2020-2024 790,000 46,020 7,443 655 1,277,095
- Total $6370000 $ 1730019 $41033215 § 20.670.480

Capital Leases - The capital lease is recorded-at the total present value of future minimum lease
payments. The following schedule shows the present value of these payments at September
30, 2004. There are no capital leases extending beyond 2008.

X _ ~ Governmental
Year Ending September 30, Activities

2005 $ 54,043

2006 54,044

2007 _ 54,044

2008 54,044

' -216,175

l.ess imputed interest (15.610)

Total present value of net .

© minimum lease _% 200,565
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2004

Note 3.

Note 4.

Detajled notes on all funds, Continued
(i) Long-Term Debt, continued
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended Septembef 30, 2004, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Bue Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activities
Long-term debt $ 8,362,612 $11,082,000 § (463,043) § 18,981,569 § 2,556,774
Compensated absences 344 908 342 517 (267,237} 420,188 284,040
Total Governmental S 8707520 $11,157,280 § (463.043) § 19401757 §.2,840,814
Business-type activities
Long-terrn debt | $43,610,000 $ 5,363,802 $ (1,986,195)) $46,987,607 $2,088,186
Compensated absences 44 188 44,579 (31,978) 56,789 34.236

Total Business-type activities $43654188 $ 5376403 $(1.986195) $47.044.306 $2.123429

Bond Resolution - Resolutions for various debt obligations establish certain funds and accounts and
determine the order in which certain revenue Is to be deposited into the funds and accounts. The
City has also covenanted to budget and appropriate sufficient non-ad valorem revenue sources to
pay the various debt obligations when due. All required balances at year-end were maintained.

Compensated Absences — In the governmental funds, the liabifity for compensated absences has
typically been liquidated from the General Fund. In the proprietary funds, the liability for
compensated absences has typically been liquidated from the Sanibel Sewer System fund.

OTHER INFORMATION
(a) Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to empleyees; and natural disasters. The City participatesina
public entity risk pool administered by Florida League of Cities, [nc. with insurance programs for
general/professional liability, automobile, property and workers compensation. The City pays an
annual premium to Florida League of Cities, Inc. for these insurance programs. Participation in this
risk pool is non-assessable. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverages as
compared to the prior year. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

The City retains the risk of loss up to a deductible amount (normatly $25,000) with the risk of loss in

- excess of this amount transferred to the pool with limits of liability of $5,000,000 per occurrence for

general and professional liability and $5,000,000 for automobile liability.
The Florida League of Cities, Inc. published financial report for the year ended September 30, 2002,

can be obtained from Florida League of Cities, Inc., Public Risk Service, 135 East Colonial Drive,
Orlando, Florida 32853-0065.
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Note 4. OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
(b) Pension Plans
The City has two (2) defined benefit single—em;ﬁloyer pension plans:

s General Employees Pension Plan
+ Municipal Police Officers’ Pension Plan

The plans do not issue stand-alone financial reports and are not included in any other retirement
system’s or entity’s financial report. The City accounts for b oth plans as p ension trustfunds;
therefore, they are accounted for in substantially the same manner as proprietary funds with a capital
maintenance measurement focus and employment of the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member
contributions, employer contributions and contributions from other entities are recognized in the
period in which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plans. For financial statement purposes, plan assets
are valued at market value for the General Employees and Municipal Police Officers’ plans, as
reported within the annual trustee statements. Because the plans do not issue stand —alone GAAP
financial reports, the following individual financial reports are presented for each of the plans:

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Pension Trust Funds Total
Municipal Pension
General Police Trust
: Employees Officers Funds
ASSETS ‘
Cash and cash equivalents 5 22,079 § 30,925 $ - 53,004
Investments, at market value
Mutual funds:
Equity 3,962,799 2,294,572 6,257,371
Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds; _
Fixed income 3,329,747 1,299,905 4,629,652
Equity ) - 1,612,374 1,612,374
Total investments at fair value 7,292,546 5,206,851 12,499,397
Receivables _ - 17,545 17,545 .
Total assets 7,314,625 5,255,321 12,569,946
LIABILITIES
Refunds payable and other liabilities - - -
NET ASSETS. . } :
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 7.314625 § 5255321 § 12,569,946
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Note 4. OTHER INFORMATION, Continued

{b) Pension Plans, continued

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer
State of Florida
Plan members

Total contributions

Investment income
Net increase in fair value of investments
Interest, dividends and miscellaneous
Total investment earnings (loss)
Less investment expense
Net investment earnings (loss)

Tota! additions (deletions)

DEDUCTIONS
. Benefits paid
Administrative expenses
‘Total deductions
Change in net assets
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

Net assets - beginning

Net assets.- ending

o4

Pension Trust Funds Total
_ Municipal Pension

General Police Trust

Employees Officers Funds
$ 815,145 $ 299,520 § 1,114,665
- 46,642 46,642
- 139,326 139,326
815,145 485,488 1,300,833
365,718 614,492 980,210
- 22,930 22,930
365,718 637,422 1,003,140
(32,289) (45,148) (77,437)
333,429 592,274 925,703
1,148,574 1,077,762 2,226,336
261,339 356,944 618,283
31,530 . 16,232 47,762
292 869 373,176 666,045
855,705 704,586 1,560,291
6,458,920 4,550,735 11,008,655
$ 7314625 $ 5,255,321  $ 12,569,946




CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 4.

OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
{b) Pension Plans, continued

General Employees’ Pension Plan

Current membership Is comprised of the following:

Active employees : _ 94

Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits: 24 .

Terminated employees entifled to benefits but not yet recelving them 30
Total 148

Plan Description

All fuil-time employees who are non-sworn police officers, and who have attained age 18 but not
attained age 65, are required to participate in the City's General Employees’ Pension Plan. The Plan
provides retirement and pre-retirement death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Thereisa
5-year cliff vesting in the Plan. The Normal Retirement Benefit of the Plan is 3% of Average
Compensation multiplied by the number of years of service {maximum 30 years). Average
Compensation is calculated over all years of service. Cost-of-living adjustments are not provided for
by this plan. This plan and any amendments were adopied by Ordinance of the City Council of the
City of Sanibel. Although the City, which is responsible for the management of plan assets, governs

- the plan the City has delegated the authority to manage plan assets to General Employees Pension

Board of Trustees. All costs of administering the plan are paid from plan assets.

Funding Policy

Active members are not required to contribute to this Plan. The City contributes the actuarially
determined amount designated to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The
current rate is 21.6% of annual covered payroll. o '

* Annual Pénsion Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City has no net pension obligation (calculated in accordance with GASB No. 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers) as all actuarially determined amounts are
contributed each year. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part
of the October 1, 2002 actuarlal valuation using the Aggregate Actuarial Cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included (a) 7.5% investment rate of return, and (b) projected salary increases of 5.4%
including an inflationary factor of 3.0%. The actuarial value of assets was determined using fair
market values. The Aggregate Actuarial Cost method determines the total cost of the projected
pension benefits of all employees combined. This total cost is then spread over the average future
remaining years to retirement for the employees. If benefits are related to compensation, the cost is
spread as a level percentage of compensation. If benefits are not related to compensation, the cost
is spread as a level dollar amount each year. The Aggregate Actuarial Cost Method does not identify
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or separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities. The portion of cost, which is attributed to each
Note 4. OTHER INFORMATION, Continued

{b) Pension Plans, continued

year is called the Normal Cost. The City's annual pension cost {APC) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2004 was $534,121.

Annual Pension Cost Percentage of APC Net Pensicon

Fiscal Year Ending (APC) Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2004 $534,121 153% $ (402,951)
September 30, 2003 404,488 100% ' (118,483)
September 30, 2002 383,785 100% (120,407)

Development of Net Pension Asset (NPA)

This municipal Defined Benefit Plan has been subject to the minimum funding standards since the
adoption of the "Florida Protection of Public Employee Retlrement Benefits Act” {Part VIl of Chapter
112, Florida Statutes) in 1980. :

The Net Pension Asset (NPA) to date is as follows:

9/30/04

Actuarially Determined Contribution (A) $ 534,121
Intereston NPA™ (8,888)

_ Adjustment fo (A) 5,442
Annual Pension Cost 530,677
Contributions Made 815,145
Increase in NPA 284,468
NPA-Beginning of Year 118,483
NPA-Ending of Year $ 402951

Concentration of [nvestments
At September 30, 2004, the following are investments (other than U.S. Government and U.S.
Government guaranteed obligations), in any one organization that represents five percent or more of

net assets available for benefits:

Florida Municipal Investmént Trust Fixed income 45,66% $3,329,747
State Street Global Advisors Equities 54.34% $3,962,799
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Note 4.

OTHER INFORMATION, Continued

{b) Pension Plans, continued

Municipal Police Qfficers’ Pension Plan
Current membership is comprised of the following:

Active employees ' 23

Retirees and beneficiaries of deceased retirees currently receiving benefits: 14

Terminated employees entitled o benefits but not yet receiving them
Total

ks

Plan Description

All full-time sworn police officers who have attained age 18 are required to participate in the City’s
Municipat Police Officers’ Pension Plan. The Plan provides retirement, disability and pre-retirement
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. There is a 5-year cliff vesting in the Plan. The Normal
Retirement Benefit of the Plan is 3% of Average Final Compensation multiplied by the number of
years of service (maximum 30 years). Average compensation is calculated by taking the average of
the total compensation paid during the 5 highest years of service. Cost of living adjustments are not
provided for by this plan. This plan and any amendments were adopted by Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Sanibel. This plan is self-trusteed and is administered by the Municipal Police
Officers’ Pension Board comprised of members elected pursuant to Section 185, Florida Statutes for
local law plans. All costs of administering the plan are paid from plan assets.

Funding Policy

Active members are required to contribute 8% of their compensation to this Plan until Normal
Retirement Age and 4% thereafter. The State of Florida makes contribytions from taxes on casualty
insurance premiums.- The City contributes the remaining actuarially determined amount designated

. to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The current rate is 23.0% of annual

covered payroll.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City has no net pension obligation (calculated in accordance with GASB No. 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers) as all actuarially determined amounts are
contributed each year. The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part
of the Qctober 1, 2002 actuarial valuation using the frozen entry age actuarial cost method.
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Note 4.

OTHER INFORMATION, Continued

{b) Pension Plans, continued

The actuarial assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of retum, and (b) projected salary
increases of 7%, which includes an inflation component of 3.0%. The actuarial value of assets was
determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of
investments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amortized as a level
percentage of payroll over a four-year period on a closed basis. The remaining period as of October
1, 2002 was 29 years. The following schedule is provided to disclose the components of the Annual
Pension Cost:

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability {UALL) as of October 1, 2003 $ 484,335
City and State Normal Cost applicable for fiscal year 2004 269,892
Interest on UAAL and Normal Cost 60,338
Sponsor Contributions to the Plan during the year (346,163)
Interest on sponsor contributions {12,138)
Change in UALL due to method change 2,292 389
Unfunded Accrued Liability as of October 1, 2004 $ 2,748,655

The City's Annual Pension Cost (APC) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 was $289,521.

Percentage of APC
Actuarially to Actuarially ‘ -
Determined Determined Net Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Contribution Contribution Asset (NPA)
September 30, 2004  $291,485 T 103% $ (64,502)
September 30, 2003 215,569 126% (55.414)
September 30, 2002 199,153 100% -

Concentration of Investments

At September 30, 2004, the following are investments at market value (other than U.S. Government
and U.S. Government guaranteed obligations), in any one organization, that represent five percent or
more of net assets available for benefits:

SunTrust Fixed Income '24.97% $1,299,905
SunTrust Equities - 50.86% $2,648,298
State Street Global Advisors
Reit Index Fund 14.75% $ 767,893
S&P Midcap Index Fund 9.15% $ 490,755
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Note 4.

OTHER INFORMATICN, Continued
(c) Miscellaneous Revenues

Other revenue in the Government Fund types at September 30, 2004 is as follows:

Hurricane Other
Charley Governmental
General. 8/13/04 - Funds Total

impact Fees $ - $ -$ 437,985 $ 437985
Contributions & Donations 13,863 - 114,019 127,882
Rents & Royalties 17,754 - 61,419 79,173
Investrnent earnings 152,241 5,040 31,883 189,164
Sale of surplus equipment - B - - 8
* Insurance proceeds for loss 4,694 - - 4,694
Refund of prior year expenditures 15,897 - - 15,997
Other 14,569 - - 14,569

Total Miscellanecus Revenue $ 219124 $ 5040 3 645306 3 869.470

(d) Commitments and Contingencies

Amotints received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to compliance audit by grantor
agencies, principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed expenses, including amounts
already collected, might constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The City does not believe any
contingent liabilities are material.

(e) Hurricane Charley

On August 13, 2004, the President of the United States declared Major Disaster No. FEMA-DR-
1539-FL as a result of Hurricane Charley. Hurricane Charley caused damage to the City's
infrastructure and extensive damage to business and personal property of the citizens of the City.

In the wake of disasters the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) coordinates federal
assistance. Under the Public Assistance program, FEMA provides assistance for debris removal,
emergency protective measures and permanent restoration of infrastructure. This program is based
on a partnership between FEMA, the State of Florida and local governments. For this disaster,
FEMA is funding 90% of allowable expenses, the State of Florida 5% and the City will be responsible
for the remainder of the unreimburseable costs.
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Note 4.

OTHER INFORMATION, Continued
{e) Hurricane Charley, continued

For certain types of facilities or areas, disaster assistance is the responsibility of a federal agency
other than FEMA. The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) administers the emergency relief
program to assist with sign replacement, repairs and debris removal for roadways identified by
FHWA. For the City, Periwinkle Way was identified as such a roadway by FHWA and reimbursable
costs of $801,946 are associated with this program. Costs in the amount of $420,000 are
assoclated with clearing debris from canals and waterways within the island and are reimbursable
from the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) ‘

The City borrowed $10 million from the Florida Local Government Commercial Paper Pool on
September 29, 2004 in order to address the immediate financial response to the disaster. As
described in Note 3 (i}, the debt is secured from any legally available non-ad valorem revenue. ltis
the intention of the City to repay the debt from FEMA, State and other grantor reimbursements as
they are received. The unreimburseable costs, which will have to by paid by the City, are estimated
to be $4.5 million. The City plans to pay the unreimburseable costs over a 3-year period, fiscal year
2006 through 2008 at $1.5 million per year.

The Hurricane Charley 8/13/04 Fund, a major fund, is used to account for assets, fiabilities, revenues
and expenditures for all costs associated with the response and recovery costs related to the storm
including debris removal, emergency protective measures and permanent infrastructure repair or
replacement. See pages 16, 18 and 21 for amounts that have been recognized in the fund financial
statements. Within the Hurricane Charley Fund, $5.3 million has been expended from the $10
million debt proceeds at September 30, 2004. $4.1 million as been recognized as a receivable from
insurance proceeds, FEMA and FHWA which amount has been earned but is unavailable, therefore
it is classified as deferred revenue.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
10/1/2004
10/1/2003
10/1/2002
10/1/2001
10/1/2000
10/1/1999

CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
GENERAL EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Covered
Payroll
()
$ 3,900,248
3,592,100
3,249,973
3,033,837
2,701,065
2,847,122

Actuarial
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded
Value of Liability AAL Funded
Assets {AAL) {UAAL) Ratio
(a) (b} (b-a) (a/b)
$ 7,314625 § 12,601,999 5,287,374 58.04%
6,458,919 6,458,919 - 100.00%
5,661,751 5,661,751 - 100.00%
5,737,504 5,737,504 - 100.00%
4,938,323 4,938,323 - 100.00%
4,271,871 4,271,871 - 100.00%
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER AND OTHER
CONTRIBUTING ENTITIES
Year Annual
Ended Required City Percentage
September 3¢  Contribution  Co niribution  Contributed
2004 $ 534121 % 815,145 152.61%
2003 404,488 404,488 100.00%
2002 383,765 383,765 400.00%
2001 402,299 432,392 107.48%
2000 515,521 610,001 118.33%
1999 532,508 532,508 100.00%

UAAL as
a % of
covered
Payroll
{(b-a¥e)
135.57%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS' PENSION PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded a%of
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered covered
Valuation Assets {AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) {b) {b-a) (afb) (c) {(b-a)/c)
10/1/2004 $ 5,413,097 $ 8,161,752 $ 2 748,655 66.32% $ 1,382,306 198.85%
10/1/2003 5,142,892 5,627,227 . 484 335,._1;_' 91.39% 1,150,972  42.08%
10/1/2002 4,968,713 5,520,045~ 551,332 © - 90.01% 976,875 56.44%
10/1/2001 4,956,770 5,065,971 109,201 97.84% 1,011,619  10.79%
10/1/2000 4,697,598 4,814,832 117,234 97.57% 1,039,031 11.28%
10/1/1999 4,165,354 4,498,591 . 333,237 92. 59% 1,038,115  32.07%
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM THE EMPLOYER AND OTHER
CON TRIBUTING ENTI TIES
Year Annual .,._ ) o
Ended Required - City . State Percentage
September 30 Contribution  Contribution Contribution Contributed
2004 3 326840 § 299521 § 35355 (M) 102.46%
2003 250,924 270,983 35,355 () 122.08%
2002 234,508 189,153 35,355 (%) 400.00%
2001 215,361 185,087 30,274 (%) 100.00%
2000 222,989 192,715 30,274 () 100.00%
1899 218,425 188,151 30,274 () 100.00%

(*) "Frozen" per Chapter 185, Florida Statutes, as amended.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable

Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Due to other governments
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved

Debt service
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund
balances

CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
September 30, 2004

Special Revenue

Vehicle Recreation Community Flexible
Weight  Historical Center Road Park Spending

Permits Committee Donations Impact Fees Impact Fees Account

$13,357 $216,705 $ 53,548 § 49,892 § 356,857 $ 2,406
49,634 -
11,156 - . 75,000 ; ] ) ]

$74147 $291,705 $ 53,548 ' § 49,802 $ 356,857 $ 2,406

$ 577 '$-7'.41,37_5 $ 1,228 $ - 8 - % -

- 112 - - . -
1,555 - - - - 2,406

- : - 47,658 40,636 -
2,132 4,487 1,228 47,658 40,636 2,406

72,015 287,218 52,320 2234 316,221 -

72,015 287,218 _ 52,320 2234 316,221 -

$74.147 $291,705 $ 53548 $ 49,892 §$ 356,857 $ 2,406
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Special Revenue

FRDAP- US Fish & Franchise

Community  Wildlife Tax and Elementary Below
Father Park Service- Occupational School Market
Madden Acquisiiton Firesafe License Tax Ball Park Rate
Estate Dobbs House Grant Revenue Maintenance Housing Total

$ 28832 § - $ - $ 247405 § 54,066 $ 545502 $ 1,568,590
- - - 23,201 671 7,993 81,499
- 415 25,975 - - - 112,546
$ 28832 § 415 § 25975 $ 270,606 $ 54,757 $ 553495 $ 1,762,635
$ - $ - 3 - $ - $ 7,064 % 31,502 § 44,746
- 415 25,975 - - - ' 26,390
- - - - - - 112
- - - - 2,398 - 6,359
- - - 216,509 - - 304,803
- 415 25,975 216,509 9,462 - 31,502 382,410
28,832 - - ‘ 54,097 45,295 521,993 1,380,225
28,832 - - 54,097 45,295 521,993 1,380,225
$ 28832 § 415 § 25975 % 270,606 $ 54,757 $ 553,495 § 1,762,635

67



ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Due from other governments

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Due to other governments
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved

Debt service
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund
balances

CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2004

Debt Service
1997 $1.25M 2002 $3.825M 1979 FMHA  SunTrust
Paulsen General Revenue Noies
Land Obligation Debt Bond for
Purchase Service Issue BMRH Total
3 54,263 $ 228,307 $ 194,017 3 50,218 $ 526,805
$ 54,263 $ 228307 $ 194,017 $ 50,218 § 526,805
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
54,263 228,307 194,017 50,218 526,805
54,263 228,307 194,017 50,218 526,805
8 54,263 $ 228,307 $ 194,017 § 50,218 $ 526,805
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Periwinkle
Capital Transportation  Bike Path & San-Cap Tarpon Brazilian
Asset Capital Road Road Bay Roead Pepper
Acquisition Projects Mainfenance Project Repaving Control
$ 844,016 $ 418,505 § 520,065 $ 433,816 $% - $ 99,397
36,430 - Co- - - -
39,611 - - - - -
$ 920,057 & 418,505 $ 520,085 $ 433,816 % - $ 99,397
$ 132,362 $ 27,842 § - $ - $ - $ 5,609
59,063 - - - - -
191,425 27,842 - - - 5,609
728,632 390,663 520,065 433,816 - 93,788
728,632 - 390,663 - 520,065 433,816 - 93,788
$ 920,057 § 418,505 ‘§ 520,065 § 433,816 $ - $ 99,397
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

September 30, 2004

Capital Projects

Environmentally Gulf Pines/Gulf = Beach Road Shell
Sensitive Shores/West Guif Paving Harbor
Land Drive Beach Special Canal
Restoration Restoration Assessments Dredging
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,415 § 64,013 § - $ 45,681
Accounts receivable - - 2,293 -
Due from other governments 15,000 - - -
Total assets $ 25415 §$ 64,013 % 2,293 § 45,681
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ - $ -
Retainage payable - - - -
Due to other funds - - 1,383 -
Due to other governmenis - - - -
Accrued liabilities - - - -
Deferred revenue - - 78 -
Total liabilities - - 1,461 -
FUND BALANCES
Reserved
Debt service - - - -
Unreserved, undesignated 25,415 64,013 832 45,681
Total fund balances 25,415 64,013 832 45,681
Total liabilities and fund
balances $ 25415 § 64,013 $ 2,293 § 45,681
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Clam/ Sanibel  Recreation Total
Dinkins Harbor Facility Nonmajor
Bayou Canal Capital Governmental
Project Trimming Project Total Funds
$ 224,011 - $200,000 $ 2,859,919 $ 4,955,314
- - - 38,723 120,222
- - - 54,611 167,157
$ 224,011 - $200,000 § 2,953,253 $ 5,242693
$ 3,333 1,936 $ 53,431 §$ 224,513 $ 269,259
- - - 59,063 59,063
- - - 1,383 27,773
- - - - 112
- - - - 6,359
- - - 78 304,881
3,333 1,936 53,431 285,037 667,447
- - - - 526,805
220,678 (1,936) 146,569 2,668,216 4,048,441
220,678 (1,936) 146,569 2,668,216 4,575,246
$ 224,011 - $200,000 § 2,953,253 $ 5,242,693
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‘ CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Special Revenue

Vehicle Recreation Community
Weight Historical Center Road Park
Permits Committee  Donations Impact Fees Impact Fees

Father
Madden
Estate

REVENUES

Ad Valorem taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $
Franchise taxes - - - - -
Occupational licenses - |
Vehicle weight permits 242,089 -
Intergovernmental 59,241 75,000 - - -
Charges for services - 5,896 - - -
Fines and forteitures 181 - - - -
Rents 43,329 - - - -
Impact fees - - - 204,823 233,162
Investment earnings - 1,991 389 804 2,002
Donations - 58,709 25,310 - -

Total revenues 344,840 141,596 25,689 205,627 235,164

EXPENDITURES
Current

Public safety 84,857 - - . -

Physical environment - - - - -

Economic environment - - -

Culture/Recreation - 164,261 23,281 - -
Capital Qutlay - - - - -
Debt Service

Principal retirement - - - -

Interest charges - - - - -

Total expenditures 64,857 164,261 23,281 - -

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures 279,083 (22,665) 2,418 205,627 235,164

282

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating fransfer in - 67,600 - - 194,308

Debt proceeds - - -
Operating transfers out (207,968) - - (204,823) {(180,090)

Total other financing sources (uses) (207,968) 67,000 - (204,823) 14,218

Net change in fund balances 72,015 44 335 2,418 804 249,382

Fund balances, October 1 - 242,883 49,802 1,430 66,839

282

28,550

Fund balances, September 30 $ 72,015 $ 287218 § 52320 § 2234 § 316,221 $

28,832
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Special Revenue

Franchise T
FRDAP-  USFish&  onoeefax

Community  Wildlife and Elementary Below
Park Service- ~ ©Occupational School Market
Acquisition  Firesafe License Ball Park Rate
Dobbs House Grant Revenue Maintenance Housing Total
$ - 8 - $ - % -8 - % -
. - 500,304 - - 500,304
- - 269,360 - - 269,360 -
- - - - - 242,089
161,236 25,975 - 107,122 - 428 574
- - - - - 5,896
- - 2,286 - - 2,467
- , - - 18,090 61,419
- - - - - 437,985
41 - 1,697 240 - 7,446
- - - - - 84,019
161,277 25,975 773,647 107,362 18,090 2,039,559
- - - - ' - 64,857
- 25,975 - - - 25,975
- - - - 794,495 794,405
- - - 168,225 - 355,767
341,367 - - - 2474204 2,815,571
. - - - 23,269 23,269
341,367 25,975 - 168,225 3,291,968 4,079,934
{180,090) - 773,647 (60,863)  (3,273,878)  (2,040,375)
180,090 ; ; 60,000 163,467 664,865
. - - - 1,082,000 1,082,000
- - (777,294) - - (1,370,175)
180,090 - (777,204) 60,000 1,245,467 376,690
- - (3,647) (863)  (2,028,411) (1,663,685)
- - 57,744 46,158 2,550,404 3,043,910
$ - - 5 - % 54097 § 45205 $§ 521,993 $ 1,380,225
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Debt Service

1097 $1.25M 200253.825M 000 cviia  SunTrust
Paulsen General Revenue Notes
Land Obligation Debt Bond for
" Purchase Service Issue BMRH Total

REVENUES
Ad Valorem taxes $ - $ 220587 § 220 587
Franchise taxes - - - - -
Qccupational licenses - - - - -
Vehicle weight permits - - - - -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Charges for services - - - 30,287 30,287
Fines and forteitures - - - - -
Rents - - - - -
Impact fees - - - - -
investment earnings 797 2,394 991 - 4,182
Donations - - - - -
Total revenues 797 231,981 991 30,287 264,056

]
R

1
A

EXPENDITURES

Current

Public safety - - - - -
Physical environment - - - - -
Economic environment - - - - -
Culture/Recreation - - - - -

Capital Outlay - - - - -

Debt Service
Principal retirement 77,567 80,000 82,154 171,045 410,766
Interest charges 42,719 160,007 105,323 66,041 374,090

Total expenditures 120,286 240,007 187,477 237,086 784,856

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over (under)
expenditures (119,489) (8,026) (186,4868) _ (206,799) _ {520,800)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfer in 120,000 - 180,000 257,017 557,017
Debt proceeds - - - - - -
Operating transfers out - - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) 120,000 - 180,000 257,017 557,017
Net change in fund balances 511 (8,026) (6,486) 50,218 36,217
Fund balances, October 1 : 53,752 . 236,333 200,503 - 490,588
Fund balances, September 30 $-. 54,263 $- 228,307 $ 194,017 $ 50,218 § 526,805
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Capital Projects

. Gulf Pines/
Periwinkle _ Environmentally Guif Shpres/
Capital Transportation Bike Path & San-Cap ~ Tarpon Brazilian Sensitive West Guif
Asset Capital Road Road Bay Road Pepper Land Drive Beach
Acquisition Proiects Maintenance Project Repaving _ Control Restorafion Restoration
$ - $ ~ $ - $ - § - $ - $ - 3 -
79,244 - - - - 105,000 - -
35,743 22,000 - - - - - -
- 110 - - - - - -
9,323 3,091 3,406 1,558 430 370 408 445
124,310 25,201 3,406 1,558 430- 105,370 408 445
930,838 361,538 8,526 3,089 8,955 251,582 23,780 -
930,838 361,538 8,526 3,089 8,955 251,582 23,780 -
(806,528) {(336,337) {5,120} (1,531) °  (8,525) (146,212) (23;372) 445
253,619 337,968 45,714 257,844 - 240,130 - -
- - - - (131,125) - - -
253,619 337,968 45,714 257,844 (131,125) 240,130 - -
(552,909) 1,631 40,594 256,313 - (-139,650)- 93,918 - (23,372) 445
1,281,641 389,082 .. 479471 _ 177,503 _ 139,650 ___ (130) 48,787 ___ 63,568
$ 728632 $ 390663 $ 520,065 % 4338168 - § 93788 § 25415 § 64,013

75



CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Capital Projects

Page3of 3

Beach Road Shell Clam/ Sanibel Recreation Total
Paving Harbor  Dinking Harbor Facility Nonmajor
Special Canal Bayou Canal Capital Governmental
Assessments Dredging _ Project  Trimming _ Project Total Funds
REVENUES ) ‘
Ad Valorem taxes 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 229,587
Franchise taxes - - - - - - 500,304
Occupational licenses - - - - - - 269,360
Vehicle weight permits - - - - - - 242,089
Intergovernmental - - 18,684 - - 202,928 631,502
Charges for services - - - - - 57,743 93,926
Fines and forteitures - - - - - 110 2,577
Rents - - - - - - 61,419
Impact fees - - - - - - 437,985
Investment earnings - 442 782 - - 20,255 31,883
Donations - - 30,000 - - 30,000 114,019
Total revenues - 442 49 466 - - 311,036 2,614,651
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public safety - - - ‘ - - - 64,857
Physical environment - - - - - - 25,975
Economic environment - - - - - - 794,495
Culture/Recreation - - - - - - 355,767
Capital Outlay - 24,950 28,788 1,936 53,431 1,697,413 4,512,984
Debt Service
Principal retirement - - - - - - 410,766
Interest charges - - - - - - 397,359
Total expenditures - 24 950 28,788 1,936 53,431 1,687,413 6,562,203
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures - (24,508) 20,678  (1,936) (53,431) {1,386,377) (3,947,552)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - 200,000 - 200,000 1,535,275 2,757,157
Debt proceeds - - - - - - 1,082,000
Operating transfers out - - - - - {131,125) {1,501,300)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - 200,000 - 200,000 1,404,150 2,337,857
Net change in fund balances - (24,508) 220,678 (1,936) 146,569 17,773 (1,609,695}
Fund balances, October 1 832 70,189 - - - 2,650,443 6,184,941
Fund balances, September 30 3 $ 4575246

832 $45681 $220,678 $(1,936) $146,568 $2,668,216
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
_ VEHICLE WEIGHT PERMITS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original - Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES . ' .
Vehicle weight perrits , $ - $ 189,552 $ 242,080 $ 52,537
Intergovernmental _ - 48,303 59,241 10,938
Fines and forfeitures - 450 181 (269)
Rents - 39,996 43,329 3,333
Total revenues - 278,301 344,840 66,539
EXPENDITURES
Current .
Public Safety - 48,303 64,857 (16,554)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over :
(under) expenditures - ' - 229,998 279,983 49,085
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer out - (207,968) (207,968) -
Net change in fund balances - 22,030 72,015 49,985
Fund balances, October 1 - - - -
Fund balances, September 30 3 - $ 22,030 $ 72,015 $ 49 985
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
HISTORICAL COMMITTEE .
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - $ 75,000 § 75,000 § -
Charges for services 3,000 3,000 © 5,896 2,896
Investment earnings 4,000 4,000 1,991 (2,009)
Donations 36,500 66,549 58,709 (7.840)
Total revenues 43,500 148,549 141,596 {6,953)
EXPENDITURES
Current .
Culture/Recreation 129,769 263,769 164,261 99,508
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (86,269) (115,220) (22,665) 92,555
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
Operating transfer in 67,000 67,000 67,000 -
Net change in fund balances (19,269) (48,220) 44,335 92,555
Fund balances, October 1 192,493 235,493 242,883 7,390
Fund balances, September 30 $ 173,224 § 187,273 $ 287,218 % 99,945
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
. '‘RECREATION CENTER DONATIONS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEND_[TURES‘AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
- Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES :
Investment earnings $ 300 § 300 § 389 % 89
Donations ' 19,700 19,700 25,310 5,610
Total revenues 20,000 20,000 25,699 5,689
EXPENDITURES
Current .
Culture/Recreation : 24,500 24,500 23,281 1,219
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures (4,500) {4,500) 2,418 6,918
Fund balances, October 1 48,957 48,957 49,902 945
Fund balances, September 30 $ 44,457 § 44457 & 52,320 § 7,863
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA

ROAD IMPACT FEES

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL '
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
impact fees
Investment earnings

Total revenues

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES})

Operating transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, October 1

Fund balances, September 30

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgsts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
$ 130,000 $ 204,823 $ 204,823 % -
- - _ 804 804
130,000 204,823 205,627 804
{130,000) {204,823) (204,823) -
- - 804 804
- - 1,430 1,430
$ - % - 8 2,234 § 2,234
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
COMMUNITY PARK IMPACT FEES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Impact fees $ 150,000 §$ 233,162 § 233,162 $ -
Investment earnings - - 2,002 2,002
Total revenues 150,000 233,162 235,164 2,002
EXPENDITURES
Current '
Culture/Recreation 350,000 313,092 - 313,092
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over .
{under) expenditures (200,000} (79,930) 235,164 315,094
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - 194,308 194,308 -
Operating transfer out - (181,218) {180,080) 1,126
Total other financing sources (Uses) - 13,092 14,218 1,126
Net change in fund balances (200,000) (66,838) 249,382 317,346
Fund batances, October 1 400,000 66,838 66,839 1
Fund balances, September 30 $  {100,000) § - $ 316,221 § 317,347
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
FRDAP-COMMUNITY PARK ACQUISITION DOBBS HOUSE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
tntergovernmental $ - $ 200,000 § 161,236 § (38,764)
Investment earnings - - 41 41
Total revenues - 200,000 161,277 {38,723)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay - 381,216 341,367 30,849
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures - (181,216) {180,090) 1,126
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) '
Operating transfer in - 181,216 180,080 (1,128)
Net change in fund balances ) - ‘ - - -
Fund balances, October 1 - - - -
Fund balances, September 30 $ - $ - 3 - 5 -
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
US FISH & WILDLIFE SERVICE-FIRESAFE GRANT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Budgets
QOriginal Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental b - $ 53,000 % 25,975
Investment earnings _ - - -

$

(27,025)

Totaf revenues - 53,000 25,975

{27,025)

EXPENDITURES
Current
Physical environment - 53,000 25,975

27,025

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures - - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - -

Net change in fund balances - - -

Fund balances, October 1 - - -

Fund balances, September 30 $ - $ - $ -
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
FRANCHISE TAX AND QCCUPATIONAL LICENSE TAX REVENUE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES ‘
Franchise taxes 5 470,000 $ 477,294 3 500,304 $ 23,010
Occupational licenses 267,750 267,750 269,360 1,810
Fines and forteitures 3,000 3,000 2,286 (714)
Investment earnings 2,400 2,400 1,697 {703)
Total revenues 743,150 750,444 773,647 23,203
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out {770,000) (777,294) (777,294) -
Net change in fund balances {26,850) (26,850) (3,647) 23,203
Fund balances, October 1 N 51,390 51,390 57,744 6,354
Fund balances, September 30 $ 24,540 $ 24540 % 54,097 $ 29,557
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL BALL PARK MAINTENANCE ,
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Criginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES |
Intergovernmental $ 95,528 § 95528 § 107,122 & 11,504
Investment eamings - - 240 240
Total revenues 85,528 95,528 107,362 11,834
EXPENDITURES
Current : :
Culture/Recreation 179,996 181,090 168,225 12,865
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (84,468) (85,562) (60,863) 24,699
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) :
Operating transfer in 60,000 60,000 60,000 -
Net change in fund balances (24,468) {25,562) (863) 24,699
Fund balances, October 1 34,191 34,191 46,158 11,967
Fund balances, September 30 $ 9,723 § 8,629 § 45295 § 36,666
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
BELOW MARKET RATE HOUSING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Rents $ 50,000 § - $ 18,090 $ 18,090
Investment earnings 50 50 - {50)

Total revenues 50,050 50 18,090 18,040
EXPENDITURES
Current _

Economic environment 1,281,500 1,289,500 794,495 495,005
Capital Qutlay - - 2,474,204 (2,474,204)
Debt Service 307,017 - 23,269 (23,269)
Total expenditures 1,588,517 1,289,500 3,291,968 (2,002,468)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (1,538,467)  (1,289,450) _ (3,273,878) 2,020,508
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
QOperating transfer in 412,484 163,467 163,467 -
Debt proceeds 1,057,000 1,057,000 1,082,000 25,000
Total other financing sources 1,469,484 1,220,467 1,245,467 25,000
Net change in fund balances (68,983) (68,983) (2,028,411) 2,045,508
Fund balances, October 1 81,177 81,177 2,550,404 2,469,227
Fund balances, September 30 $ 12,194 § 12,194 § 521,993 $§ 4,514,735
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CITY CF SANIBEL FLORIDA
1997 $1.25M PAULSEN LAND PURCHASE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original Finai Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 700 $ 700 § 797 § 97
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal retirement 77,658 77,658 77,567 o1
Interest charges 42,652 42 652 42,719 (87)
Total expenditures . 120,310 120,310 120,286 24
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (119,610) (119,610) (119,489) 121
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
Net change in fund balances ' 390 . 390 511 121
Fund balances, October 1 451 451 53,752 53,301
Fund balances, September 30 $ 841 -§ 841 $ 54263 $ 53422
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For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Ad Valorem taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service

Principal retirement
Interest charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, October-1

Fund balances, September 30

CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
2002 $3.825M GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVCIE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
$ 238,208 § 238,208 $ 229,587 § (8,621)
2,500 2,500 2,394 (106)
240,708 240,708 231,981 {8,727)
80,000 80,000 80,000 -
158,208 158,208 160,007 {1,799)
238,208 238,208 240,007 . {1,799)
2,500 2,500 (8,026) {10,526)
2,500 2,500 (8,026) {10,526)
223,710 223,710 236,333 12,623
b 226,210 $ 226,210 § 228,307 § 2,097
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
) 1979 FMHA REVENUE BOND ISSUE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES _
Investment earnings $ 1,000 § 1,000 § 991 $ 9
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service s
Principal retirement 81,840 81,840 82,154 (314)
Interest charges 105,687 105,687 105,323 364
Total expenditures 187,527 187,527 187,477 50
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (186,527) (186,527) (186,486) 41
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ' ' e
Operating transfer in 180,000 180,000 180,000 -
Net change in fund balances (6,527} (6,527) (6,486) 41
Fund balances, October 1 12,964 12,964 200,50"3 187,539.
Fund balances, September 30 $ 6,437 $ 8437 § 194,017 § 187,580
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
SUNTRUST NOTES FOR BMRH
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Criginal Final Actual {(Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services $ - $ 50,000 $ 30,287 % (19,713)
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service -
Principal retirement - 209,717 171,045 38,672
Interest charges - 97,300 66,041 31,259
Total expenditures - 307,017 237,086 69,931
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures - (257,017) {206,799) 50,218
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) _
Operating transfer in - 257,017 257,017 -
Net change in fund balances - - 50,218 50,218
Fund balances, October 1 - - - -
Fund balances, September 30 3 - $ - ) 50,218 § 50,218
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
_ CAPITAL ASSET ACQUISITION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original " Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - 45000 % 79,244 § 34,244
Charges for services - - 35,743 35,743
Investment earnings ' 5,000 5,000 9,323 4,323
Total revenues 5,000 50,000 124,310 74,310
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 1,844,519 1,640,159 930,838 709,321
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over .
(under) expenditures (1,839,519)  (1,590,159) (806,528) 783,631
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) C
Operating transfer in 888,630 253,619 253,619 -
Debt proceeds 55,000 55,000 - (55,000) -
Total other financing sources 943 630 308,619 253,618 (55,000}
Net change in fund balances (895,889) (1,281,540) {552,909) 728,631
Fund balances, October 1 . 895,889 1,281,540 1,281,541 1
Fund balances, September 30 $ - - 3 728,632 $ 728,632
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with
Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES :
Charges for services $ “ $ 22,000 $ 22,000 % -
Fines and forteitures - - 110 110
Investment earmnings 3,000 3,000 3,091 91
Total revenues © 3,000 25,000 25,201 201
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 730,000 752,000 361,538 390,462
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (727,000) (727,000) (336,337) 390,462
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) _ :
Cperating transfer in 248,416 337,968 337,968 -
Net change in fund balances (478,584) (389,032) 1,631 380,462
Fund balances, October 1 7 478,584 389,032 389,032 -
Fund balances, September 30 $ - 3 - $ 390663 $ 390462
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA

A PERIWINKLE BIKE PATH & ROAD MAINTENANCE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive

Original Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 4,000 § 4,000 3 3406 $ (594)
EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutlay 230,000 230,000 8,526 221,474
Excess {deficiency} of revenue over
(under) expenditures - {226,000) {226,000) (5,120) 221,474
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - 45,714 45,714 -
Net change in fund balances ' (226,000) (180,2886) 40,594 220,880
Fund balances, October 1 525,185 . 479,471 479,471 -
Fund balances, September 30 3 209,185 $ 209,185 $ 520,065 § 220,880
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
SAN-CAP ROAD PROJECT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

: Final Budget -
Budgets Positive

Criginal Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 4,500 % 1,000 § 1,558 $ 558
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 200,000 436,347 3,089 433,258
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over _
(under) expenditures {(195,500) (435,347) (1,531) 433,816
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - 257,844 257,844 -
Net change in fund balances {195,500) (177,503) 256,313 433,816
Fund balances, October 1 366,293 177,503 177,603 -
Fund balances, September 30 $ 170,793 § - s 433816 § 433,816
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
TARPON BAY ROAD REPAVING
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

REVENUES
Investment earnings

EXPENDITURES
Capital Qutlay

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, October 1

Fund balances, September 30

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
§ - $ 430 § 430 § -
- 8,955 8,955 .
- (8,525) (8,525) -
- - (131,125) (131,125)
- {(8,525) {139,650) (131,125)
- 8,625 139,650 131,125
$ -_ § -_ 8 -8 -
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
BRAZILIAN PEPPER CONTROL
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgefs Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental - $ 65,000 § 105,000 $ 40,000
Investment earnings - - 370 370
Total revenues - 65,000 105,370 40,370
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 240,000 305,000 251,582 53,418
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (240,000) (240,000) (146,212) 93,788
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in 232,836 240,130 240,130 -
Net change in fund balances (7,164) 130 93,918 93,788
Fund balances, October 1 7,164 (130) {130) -
Fund balances, September 30 - $ - $ 93,788 § 93,788
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
‘ ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE LAND RESTORATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

' Final Budget -
Budgets Positive

Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES '
Investment earnings $ - $ - $ 408 § 408
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay 20,000 20,000 23,780 (3,780)
Excess {deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures (20,000) (20,000) (23,372) _ (3,372)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - - -
Net change in fund balances (20,000) (20,000) (23,372) (3,372)
Fund balances, Cctober 1 73,076 48,787 48,787 -
Fund balances, September 30 $ 53,076 $ 28,787 $ 25415 $ (3,372)

97



CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
SHELL HARBOR CANAL DREDGING
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Finat Budget -
Budgets Positive
- Original Final Actual (Negative)
REVENUES .
Investment earnings $ - $ - $ 442 $ 442
Special assessments - - - -
Total revenues - - 442 442
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay - 24,950 24,950 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures - (24,950) (24,508) 442
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - - - -
Net change in fund balances - (24,950) {24,508) 442
Fund balances, October 1 - 70,189 70,189 -
Fund balances, September 30 $ - $ 45,239 3 45681 § 442
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA
CLAM/DINKINS BAYOU PROJECT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - $ 225,000 % 18,684 $  {206,316)
Investment earnings - - 782 782
Donations - 50,000 30,000 (20,000)
Total revenues - 275,000 49,466 (225,534)
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay - 475,000 28,788 446,212
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
(under) expenditures - (200,000) 20,678 220,678
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfer in - 200,000 200,000 -
Net change in fund balances - - 220,678 220,678
Fund balances, Cctaber 1 - - - -
Fund balances, September 30 $ - $ - $ 220,678 % 220,678
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CITY OF SANIBEL FLORIDA

RECREATION FACILITY CAPITAL PROJECT

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgets Positive
Qriginal Final Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - $ - - $ -
Investment earnings - - - -
Donations - - - -
Total revenues - - - -
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay - 200,000 53,431 146,569
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over
{under) expenditures - {200,000) (563,431) 146,569
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) _
Operating transfer in - 200,000 200,000 -
Net change in fund balances - - 146,569 146,568
Fund halances, October 1 - - - -
Fund balances, September 30 $ - $ - 146,569 $ 146,569
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
September 30, 2004

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis

Investments, at market value
Mutual funds:
Equity
Pooled/Common/Commingled Funds:
Fixed income '

Equity
Total investments at fair value

Receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Refunds payable and other liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits

101

Pension Trust Funds Total
Municipal Pension
General Police Trust
Employees Officers Funds
$ 22079 § 30925 $ 53,004
3,962,799 2,294,572 6,257,371
3,329,747 - 1,299,905 4,629,652
- 1,612,374 1,612,374
7,292,546 5,206,851 12,499,397
- 17,545 17,545
7,314,625 5,255,321 12,569,946
$ 7314625 $ 5255321 § 12,569,046




ADDITIONS
Confributions
Employer
State of Florida
Ptan members

Total contributions

Investment income
Net increase in fair value of investments
Interest, dividends and miscellanecus

Total investment earnings (loss)

Less investment expense

Net investment earnings (loss)

Total additions (deletions)

DEDUCTIONS
| Benefits paid
Administrative expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
' FIDUCIARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2004

Pension Trust Funds Total
Municipal Pension
General Police Trust
Employees Officers Funds
3 815,145 § 209520 § 1,114,665
- 46,642 46,642
- 139,326 139,326
815,145 485,488 1,300,633
365,718 614,492 980,210
- 22,930 22,930
365,718 637,422 1,003,140
(32,289) (45,148) (77,437)
333,429 592,274 925,703
1,148,574 1,077,762 - 2,226,336
261,339 356,944 618,283
31,530 16,232 47 762
292,869 373,176 666,045
855,705 704,586 1,560,291
6,458,920 4.550,735 11,009,655
$ 7314625 $ 5255321 $ 12,568,948
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City of Sanibel, Florida

This page is left blank intentionally
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CITY OF SANIBEL
INSURANCE IN FORCE
September 30, 2004

Table #14

Type of Coverage

General/Professional Liability

a) Errors & Omissions Liability

- Coverage Amount

b} Employee Benefits Program Administration Liability

¢} Broad Form Property Damage
d) Extra Confractual Legal Expense

Automobile

a) Automobile Liability

b} Personal Injury Protection (Statutory)

¢) Automobile Physical Damage
Property and Allied Coverages

a) Real and Personal Property
b) Inland Marine
¢) Electronic Data Processing
d) Fidelity Bond
e) Crime
Faithful Performance
Honesty
i) Forgery
g) Time Element/Business Income

h) Money & Securities/Theft, Disappearance

and Destruction

Workers Compensation ( Statutory)

a) Indemnity Agreement
b) Employers Liability

Specific Excess'Coverage

a) General Liability
b) Automobile Liability

Fiood Coverage - Buildings & Contents

Windstorm Coverage
Boiler & Machinery

Law Enforcement Death Benefits (Statutory)

Position Fidelity {(Finance Director)

Storage Tank (Third Party Liability)

$ 100,000 Each Person
200,000 Each QOccurence

$ 100,000 Each Person
$ 200,000 Each Occurence

ltemized per Detailed Schedule of Values

$ 31,387,662
$ 642,795
Included in contents coverage -
$ 250,000

250,000
250,000
100,000
100,000

10,000

1,000,000

1,000,000 Each Disease
1,000,000 Aggregate by Disease

Each Accident

LA B £ 7 €4 9 B

5,000,000
5,000,000

8,100,600
9,264,000
3,000,000

50,000
50,000
150,000

Line of Duty AD&D
Fresh Pursuit
Intentional Death

1,000,000

3 7 LR & ©« & 3

1,000,000
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Table #16
CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

The City of Sanibel, an island forming the western-most point of Lee County, was incorperated in 1974 through a
referendum vote on November 5, 1974, and operates under a Council-City Manager form of government.

NATURAL FEATURES:
LaNE A8 rerercr v v rrirrr s e ssrscsrasssasssin e s e s e sae st sre e sbe s s aesaenbe e beeebran st eranraes 10,730  Acres
Shoreline:
Beach Frontage GuIf of MEXICO......cceeerieii v eevrnrrnrersrnerere s sesensnns 11.75  Miles
38N CaNo$ Bay...iciririrrecsrieniniserees s e sremee s sae s resae e ssaeeses 3.75  Miles
Mangrove Frontage. ... e cessere s r s s sses e ere s 9.00 Miles
Island Elevation: Average above Sea level.... v 400  Feet
Maximum above sea level 13.00 Feet
Precipitation =~ Annually........eieeivinnninienn, PR eiieitearee e s s 4230  Inches
Temperature: Annual AVErage.. ... e 74 ° Fahrenheit
August Average............ S — teeeansd rersrneensnnnnres 83 ° Fahrenheit
January Average......._.....................' ...... s ——————- 64 ° Fahrenheit
DEMOGRAPHICS: B ) o
Resident Population 2003 Data.........o...ieereees et b nran e 6,335
Seasonal Peak Service Population...... ' 3 33,000
Registered Voters ....ccevverveveriviceerneenes : : e 4,906
"Resident Average Age 2000...0muvreeresermsrmnenssies 60.5
Average Assessed Home Value 2003 Data . $ 505,850
Median Family Income - 2001 . $ 71,813
Public Education (Operated at County Level)
Elementary/Middle SChOOL . iriereerrrrnnre et smans 1
Enroliment (Kindergarten through Eighth) .................................................... 425
Police Station... 1
Number of Full-ttme Sworn Oﬁ" icers (Full T[me Equwa[ent) .......................... 24.00
Number of Part-time Sworn Officers (Full Time Equivalents)......cccveeeevnan. 3.25
Fire Stations {Operated at County Level).....criin e 2
Number of Fuil-time Firefighters.....ci e 25
FIre HYArants. oo eeieee e reesrerrrrreseeessssessine s s ssss s snsesssssesssesnsnseness 452
PUDIIC LiDrariEs. vveeee s eeeeecerasscsiessincscasnsesesses srsrsssessmrsennssessessbs s ssnssssnrssnsnessin senre 1
Library HoldINgS. e coreerreeessenermr e sesissiainninnssssssssasnsnnssssmsnsssoresases 59,981
Water & Sewer Utilities Water Sewer
ACHVE ACCOUNES ..t vviiiiriiiiieeerrraasssssiisrrarreerssesemmseeaensssssssssasssssenersnsnsas 4,930 2,997
MileS OF MEINS.cove it sree s et s ns s snss s s rr e e e ian 100.8
FOrGE MaINS.. eeree i riirieren i vrr e recssie e s e art s er e e e s i enaa s 50
Gravity MainS. ... ceriar i e rrre e e et it e 42
Capacity per Day - Millions of Gallons..........ccevevvevierrersnssininire e sreeeesesssans 4.7
Donax Treatment Plant........cov i i 2.375
Wulfert Treatment Plant.......coo v 0.125
Roads - Total PUDNG & PHVALE ..ottt ssss s s e 80.68 Miles
Public ROAAS - PAVEU.....ccorerinrrimreeae e st sssnsessnisss e saessasssanees 5277  Miles
Public Roads - Unpaved 8.98  Miles
Bicycle Paths... 2262 Miles
Causeway (County Owned Round Tnp $3 00) ............................. naresearenanreneannn . ...3  DMies
Causeway Traffic... 3,112,301 Auios
Public & Conservation Land Total ...................................................................... 8,275  Acres
J.N. "Ding" Darling Wildlife Refuge.........ccimiimmcernsreeresecsnssss s, 6,187  Acres
Sanibel-Captiva Conservation Foundation........c.cn i, 1,250  Acres
LEE COUMY . rrrirmrereerieree it st esnsansss s re bt tes st bt s s r st s st anata e 196  Acres
Clty Of SANIDE....cceeertrerreerarise et st s sms s e s 642  Acres
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David L.Schultz, CPA,* ABV SCH[ )L B
Clifford Chaipel, CPA
Martin A. Redovan, CPA,* CVA CHAI E
Russell T. Baker, CPA O
, _ LLE

* Regulated by l‘:hc State of Florida
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sanibel, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, cach major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Sanibel,
Florida (the “City”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2004, which, together with the -
aggregate discretely presented component unit, collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 7, 2005. We did not audit the financial
statements of Community Housing and Resources, Inc., a component unit. Those financial statements
were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the financial
statements, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Community Housing and Resources, Inc.,
is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with anditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purposec of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters
in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition
in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we con51der to be
material weaknesses.

950 Encore Way, Suite 102 12660 World Plaza Lane
Naples, FL 34110 : Fort Myers, FL 33907
(239) 417-4007 - 123 - (239) 939-5333

Fax: (239) 254-8249 www.swilcpa.com Fax: (239) 939-4682



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated July 7,
2005.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management of

the City, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through awarding entities, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

J-M( ﬂ&f—&({ &, Ler

Schultz, Chaipel & Co., L.L.P.
July 7, 2005
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Devid LSl CPA ARY SCHULT%
Martin A. Redovan, CPA,* CVA CI_IAI

Russell T. Baker, CPA O LLP

* Regulated by the State of Florida
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sanibel, Florida

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Sanibel, Florida, (the “City”) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement, that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended September 30, 2004. The City's major federal programs and are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2004.

950 Encore Way, Suite 102 _ 12660 World Plaza Lane
Naples, FL 34110 Fort Myers, FL 33907
(239) 417-4007 ' -125- 7 (239) 939-5333

Fax: (239) 254-8249 www.swilcpa.com Fax: (239) 939-4682



Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controtl
over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which
the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a
relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations,
coniracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its
operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management of
the City, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through awarding entities, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Scwg CAapetr G./ eep
Schultz, Chaipel & Co., L.L.P.
July 7, 2005
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CITY OF SANIBEL, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Federal, State, or

Federal CFDA Pass-Through
Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor [Program Title Number Contract Number Expenditures
Environmental Protection Agency:
Fassed through State of Florida, Department of
Environmental Protection
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.458 CS 120835080 b3 119,501
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.458 WWG12083510L 673,550
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.458 WWE3S11A 631,190
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.458 WWSE3511L 3,902,352
Total Environmental Protection Agency 5,326,593
Department of Homeland Security
Pussed through State of Florida, Department of
Emergency Management
Public Assistance Grants 97.036 3,320,784
Department of Transportation
Passed through State of Florida, Department of
Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 352,222
Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed through Lee County, Floride
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 2351 309,943
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 3,807
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 313,750
U.S. Department of Fish and Wildlife 15.228 25,975
Department of Justice
Passed through State of Florida, Department of
Law Enforcement
Local Law Enforcement Block Granits 16.592 : 3,297
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 9,342,621

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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CITY OF SANIBEL
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
September 30, 2004

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULE

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) is a supplementary schedule to the
City’s basic financial statements and is presented for purposes of additional analysis. The Schedule is
required by Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Basis of Presentation

Federal Financial Assistance - Pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1984 (Public Law 98-502), the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 (Public Law 104-156), and OMB Circular A-133, federal
financial assistance is defined as assistance provided by a federal agency, either directly or
indirectly, that nonfederal entitics receive or administer, in the form of grants, contracts,
cooperative agreements, loans, loan guarantees, property interest subsidies, insurance, or direct
appropriations. :

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance — OMB Circular A-133 requires the Schedule to present
the total expenditures for each of the City’s federal financial assistance programs as identified in
the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA). Federal financial assistance programs
that have not been assigned a CFDA number are indicated with an “N/A.”

Type A and Type B Programs

The Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133 establish the levels of
expenditures to be used in defining Type A and Type B federal financial assistance programs.
Type A assistance programs for the City are those programs that exceeded $300,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2004.

Reporting Entity

The Schedule includes all federal financial assistance programs administered by the Cify of
Sanibel and included in the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Basis of Accounting

Expenditures included in the Schedule are reported using the modified accrual basis of
accounting for governmental funds and the accrual basis of accounting for enterprise funds as
defined in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SANIBEL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Report

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued, Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
e Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
* Reportable condition(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
e Reportable condition(s) identified

that are not considered to be

material weakness(es)? yes X none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major federal programs: Ungqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required

to be reported in accordance with .
section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133 yes X no
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CITY OF SANIBEL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Report (Continued) )

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
66.458 Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds
97.036 Public Assistance Grants
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction
14.218 Community Development Block Grant
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A or Type B:
Major Federal Programs $ 300.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with paragraphs 5.18
through 5.20 of Government Auditing Standards.

Section 1II — Findings and Questioned Costs — Maior Federal Programs

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of
OMB Circular A-133.

There were no matters reported in the prior year Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs required
to be reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133.
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